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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of American Family Mutual
Insurance Com pany and Subsidiaries (the “Com panies”), which com prise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, of changes in policyholders’ equity, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statem ents are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessm ents, we consider internal control relevant to the
Companies preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statem ents in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companies’ internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estim ates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2015 and December 51, 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

]W LeP

February 29, 2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, IL 60606
T: 812-208-2000, F: 312-208-2001 , www.pwc.com,/ us



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2015 and 2014

{in thousands of dofars)

Assets

Bonds, available-for-sale
Common stocks, available-for-sale
Mortgage loans

Real estate

Policy loans

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Otherinvested assets

Total cash and investments

Property and casualty premiums receivable
and agents’ balances

Accrued investmentincome

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Property and equipment{net of accumulated
depreciation of $902,655 and $838,358 )

Reinsurance recoverable

Prepaid reinsurance premium

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Separate account assets

Total assets

2015 2014
$ 12,533,875 $ 12,414,275
2,138,049 2,208,948
527 179 483,404
7778 6,892
212,987 218,498
669,123 522,828
252,196 166,072
764,361 663,525
17,105,548 16,684,442
1,413,956 1,284,187
128,084 127,367
735345 644,671
661978 595,389
263,471 272,136
56,938 83,722
221627 221,627
176,076 209,334
130,187 21,994
277,944 89,123
292,429 318,096
$ 21,463,583 $ 20,552,088

2015 2014
Liabilities
Property and casualtyloss and loss
adjustmentexpense reserve $ 3772873 $ 372544
Liabilifies for life polides and deposit con fracts 4,080,261 4,008,620
Property and casualtyuneamed premiums 3,178,995 2922530
Life policyholders’ dividends payable 9,479 9678
Drafts outstanding 77,502 87,053
Income tax payable 9,380 68,968
Agent contract termination payments 660,007 675,164
Employee pension and other benefits 373671 376,901
Long-term debt {includes $599,994 and
$624,021 at fair value, respectively) 636,077 660,104
Accrued expenses 306,726 314,137
Ceded premiums payable 39,329 92,101
Other liabilifies 664,357 328,187
Separate account liabilities 292 429 318,096
Total liabilies 14,101,086 13,586,980
Policyholders’ Equity
Retained earnings 6,987,963 6,294,043
Accumulated other comprehensive
income {loss) 374534 671,065
Total policyholders’ equity 7,362 497 6,965,108
Total liabiliies and policyholders’
equity $ 21,463583 $ 20552088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

fin thousands of dollars)

Revenues
Properly and casualtypremiums eamed

Life insurance premiums, fees and other considerafions

Netinvestimentincome
Netimpaimentlosses recognized in earnings
Other realized capital gain (loss)
Otherincome

Total revenues

Benefits and expenses

Properly and casualtylosses and loss adjustment
expenses incumed

Life insurance claims and other benefits

Life insurance dividends to policyholders

Change in future life policy benefits

Other property and casually underwriting expenses
Other expenses

Total benefits and expenses
Income (loss ) before income tax expense (benefit)

Income tax expense (benefit)
Current
Deferred

Total income taxexpense (benefit)

Netincome (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Changes in unrealized gains and losses on securities (net of tax of ($280,672)
and $175,643 and deferred policy acquisition cost adjustments of ($31,435)

and $15,497 in 2015 and 2014, respectively)

Less: reclassification adjustmentfor net gains {losses} includedin other
realized capital gain (los s} (net of tax of $106,228 and $160,412 in 2015 and

2014, respectively)

Changes in defined benefitobligations (net of tax of $5,531 and $(90,914) in

2015 and 2014, respectively)

Other comprehensive income (loss )

Comprehensive income (loss)

2015 2014
$ 7,020,172 $ 6563709
306,752 308,190
562,410 376,829
(76,748) (17,106)
204,743 558,480
178,733 142,664
8,286,062 7932766
4,453,707 4,610,965
189,091 177 559
17,535 21825
98,628 101,438
2,340,544 2,111,889
172,425 164,392
7,271,930 7,188 068
1,014,132 744698
259,491 206,271
60,721 23233
320,212 229504
693,920 515,194
(120,631) 310,144
185,598 281915
9,698 (156 282)

(296 531) (128,053)

$ 397389 $ 387,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Policyholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

fin thousands of dollars)

Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year

Netincome (loss)
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest
Balance at end of year

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Netunrealized gain (loss} on investments
Balance at beginning of year
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on common stocks, bonds, and other assets
Income taxbenefit (expense)
Balance at end of year
Netunrealized gain (loss) on deferred acquisition costs
Balance at beginning of year
Change in period, netofincome tax (expense) benefit
Balance at end of year
Change in pension and other post-retirementbenefit obligations
Balance at beginning of year
Change in period, netofincome tax (expense) benefit
Balance at end of year

Tofal accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Tofal policyholders' equity

2015 2014
$6,294043  $5,781836
693,920 515,194
- (2,987)

6,987,963 6,294,043
845838 807,641
(512,109) 58,955
185676 (20,758)
519,405 845,838
(28,185) (18,225)
20,204 (9,960)
(7.981) (28,185)
(146,588) 9,604
9,698 (156,282)
(136,890)  (146588)
374534 671,065
$7,362497  $6,965,108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

{in thousands of dolfars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by {(used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Fair value option of long-term debt
Net realized (gains) losses on sales of investments
Change in value of trading securities
Change in value of derivatives
Eamings of equity method invesiments
Unearned premiums
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Deferred income tax provision
Insurance reserves
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sales, maturities or calls of bonds
Purchases of bonds

Proceeds from sales of common stocks
Purchases of common stocks

Proceeds from sales of mortgages

Purchases of mortgages

Proceeds from sales of other investments
Purchases of other investments

Net purchases and sales of shori-term investments
Net (increase) decrease in finance receivables
Purchase of property and equipment

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Other investing activities

Net cash provided by (used in} investing acivities

Cash flows from financing activities
Deposits to invesiments-type and universal life contracts
Withdrawals from investment-type and universal life confracts

Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year

End of year

Income taxes paid (received)
Interest paid (received)

2015 2014
$ 693920 $ 515194
214,562 183,886
(24,027) 127,845
(217,995) (541,860)
- 14,331

21,917 56,114
(50,307) (42,012)
262,161 (102,239)
(59,239) (41,347)
66,394 23,233
171,231 205,598
(145,691) 232,456
92,926 631,199
7,523,973 5,647,618
(7,987,928) (5,990,802)
868,378 1,022,965
(836,358) (1,005,774)
112,718 58,049
(156,541) (117,231)
3,361,630 344,746
(3,475,796) (399,187)
(65,641) (27,541)
1,122 1,061
(126,466) (59,054)
- (4,692)

5,938 5,338
(774,971) (614,504)
80,440 83,450
(92,100) (90,726)
(11,660) (1,276)
146,295 9,419
522,828 513,409
$ 669123 §$ 522,828
$ 317334 §$ 119,911
27,303 27,281

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

American Family Mutual Insurance Company (AFMIC) is the parent of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, American Family Brokerage, Inc. (AFBI), American Family Securities, LLC (AFS), The
AssureStart Insurance Agency LLC (AlIA), and AmFam, Inc. AmFam, Inc’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries are American Family Life Insurance Company (AFLIC), American Standard Insurance
Company of Wisconsin {ASIC), American Family Financial Services, Inc. (AFFS), American Family
Insurance Company (AFIC), American Standard Insurance Company of Ohio (ASICO), PGC
Holdings Corp. (PGC), Homesite Group, Inc. (Homesite), Midvale Indemnity Company (MIC), and
Midvale Life Insurance Company of New York (MLNY). AmFam, Inc., a non-insurance holding
company, is the managing member and AFLIC is a non-managing member of New Ventures, LLC
(NV), an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of AFMIC. AFMIC and its consolidated subsidianes are
herein referred to collectively as the “Companies” or the “Company”.

AFMIC and AFIC are engaged principally in the writing of automobile insurance, homeowners
insurance, commercial insurance, and other property and casualty insurance. ASIC and ASICO
are engaged principally in the writing of hon-standard automobile and cycle insurance. ASIC also
assumes property reinsurance mainly outside the Companies’ existing geographic operating
territory in order to diversify the Companies’ risk. AFLIC principally markets whole life, term life,
and universal life products to provide financial protection for qualified individuals, families and
business enterprises and also supports a small amount of group life insurance and structured
settlement business primarily as a service to its affiliates. AFLIC cedes 100% of its variable
universal life (VUUL) and variable annuity (VA) business, which the Company no longer sells, under
a 100% reinsurance agreement with Kansas City Life Insurance Company. These companies sell
these lines of business predominantly through a multi-line, exclusive agency force in nineteen
states.

AFFS was substantially engaged in the business of making direct loans to qualified individuals and
business enterprises. AFFS ceased issuing new loans on November 1, 2007, and existing loans
are in run-off. AFBI is an insurance agency which provides brokerage services fo its affiliates and
administers the federal Write Your Own Flood Program on behalf of AFMIC. In 2014, articles of
dissolution for AFS, a non-clearing registered broker-dealer, were filed with and approved by the
state of Wisconsin, at which time the assets were distributed to AFMIC. NV was formed in 2010 to
support the Companies’ non-insurance business development efforts. MLNY was formed in 2015
and had no activity during the year.

AFMIC owns 100% of the Class A units of AlA and on November 26, 2014, purchased 100% of the
Class B units of AlA.

Homesite specializes in direct-to-consumer homeowners, renters and condominium insurance and
sells their products primarnly through alliances with other insurers, mortgage companies, and real
estate companies. Homesite's wholly-owned subsidiary, Homesite Indemnity Company (HIC), is a
property and casualty writer domiciled in Kansas. Homesite's other subsidiaries are Homesite
General Agent, LLC (HG) and Homesite Secunties Company, LLC (HSC). HSC owns Homesite
Insurance Agency (HIA) and has seven wholly-owned insurance subsidiaries: Homesite Insurance
Company of Georgia (HGA), Homesite Insurance Company of New York (HNY), Homesite
Insurance Company of California (HCA), Homesite Insurance Company of the Midwest (HMW),
Homesite Insurance Company of lllinois {(HIL), Homesite Insurance Company of Florida (HFL), and
Homesite Insurance Company (HCT). HSC also owns and controls Texas-South of Homesite, Inc.
(HTX), which is the attorney-in-fact for Homesite Lloyds of Texas (HLTX). As of December 31,



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015, Homesite is licensed in all 50 states and the District of Columbia and has policies in force in
48 states and the District of Columbia.

PGC is the ultimate parent of the group of companies referred to generally as the Permanent
General Companies. The Permanent General Companies spedialize in writing non-standard
prnvate passenger personal automobile insurance, primarily to consumers interested in acquiring an
insurance policy to comply with state minimum insurance requirements. PGC's business is
prnmarily written online and over the phone. As of December 31, 2015, PGC was licensed in 48
states and the District of Columbia and had policies In force in 42 states and the District of
Columbia.

Property and casualty insurance represented 96% of total net premiums written for both 2015 and
2014, Life insurance represented 4% of total net premiums written for both 2015 and 2014.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) which require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liahilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements include:

a. Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Companies
after elimination of all significant intercompany balances and activities.

b. Cash and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and securities that have maturities of three months
or less at purchase and consist primarily of money market mutual funds carried at cost, which
approximates fair value. Short-term investments represent securities that have maturities of
one year or less at purchase and are accounted for in the same manner as long-term bonds.

The Companies may dispose of bonds prior to their scheduled maturity due to changes in
market interest rates, tax and credit considerations, liquidity or regulatory capital requirements,
or other similar factors. As a result, the Companies consider all of their bonds and common
stocks available-for-sale with the exception of the Company’s investment in convertible bonds,
which were considered trading securities prior to liquidation of the portfolio during 2014.
Avallable-for-sale invesiments are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net
of applicable deferred taxes, reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income until realized. If there is a decline in an investment's net realizable value that is other-
than-temporary, the decline is recorded as a realized loss and the book value of the
investment is reduced to its fair value or present value of expected future cash flows. Trading
securiies are reported at fair value with unrealized gain or loss reported in earnings as part of
net investment income.

Other invested assets consist primarily of investments in limited partnerships. The limited
partnerships are reported in the financial statements according to the Company's percentage
of equity ownership in the limited partnerships. The Company has determined an ownership
percentage of 5% or greater is more than a minor interest in a limited partnership, and these



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

investments are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The cost method of
accounting is generally used to account for limited partnerships with a less than 5% ownership
interest, as the Company’s interest is so minor that it exercises virtually no influence over the
investee's operations. Due to the nature and structure of these cost method investments, they
do not meet the characteristics of an equity security in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. These investments typically reflect a reporting lag of up to three months,
dependent upon receipt of the limited partnership financial statements. The Company also
holds low income housing tax credits that are recorded at amortized cost.

For the limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting, all income
from these partnerships, including net investment income, realized capital gains and losses,
and changes in unrealized gains and losses, are recorded as net investment income on the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Derivative instruments are accounted for on a fair value basis and reported as other assets or
other liabilities, as applicable, on the consolidated balance sheets. When certain derivatives
meet specific criteria, they may be designated as accounting hedges and accounted for as fair
value, cash flow, or foreign currency hedges. The Company did not elect to apply hedge
accounting for the derivative instruments that were utilized during the reporting period. As a
result, unrealized gains and losses on open derivative positions are recognized as a
component of net investment income, with an adjusiment to the carrying value of the
derivative instrument. Interim settlements involving the receipt or payment of cash as well as
the gain or loss recognized upon exiting a derivative position are also included as a
component of net investment income. Cash flows from derivatives are reported in cash flows
from investing activities within the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Prepayment assumptions for mortgage-hacked and asset-backed securities are obtained from
external sources when the securities are purchased. These allow the Company to recognize
income using a constant effective yield based on those prepayment assumpfions and the
economic life of the securities. Updated prepayment assumptions are obtained on a monthly
basis, and the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments received and expected
future payments.

Real estate assets consist of land, buildings, and building improvements held for the
production of income. Land is reported at cost. Buildings and improvements are carmied at
cost, less accumulated depredation computed on the straightldine method over estimated
uselul lives ranging from twenty to forty-five years.

Mortgage loans are carried at their aggregate unpaid principal balances, net of a valuation
allowance for estimated uncollectible amounts. Policy loans are reported at their outstanding
prncipal balance and are limited to the cash value of the policy.

Common stocks are generally reported in the consolidated financial statements at fair value,
which is based primarily on values published by independent pricing sources and quoted
market prices.

Investment income is recorded when eamed. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend
date. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are determined on a specific
identification basis and are recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Fair Value Measurements
Financial assets and financial labiliies recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value are categorized based on the reliability ofinputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

fevelt 7 Financial assets and financial liabiliies whose values are based on unadjusted
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that the Company
can access.

fevel 2 Finandial assets and financial liabilities whose values are based on the following:
Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabiliies in non-active markets; or
Valuation models whose inputs are observable, directly or indirectly, for substantially
the full term of the asset or liability.

fevelt 3 Financial assets and financial liabilities whose values are based on prices or
valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement. These inputs may reflect the Company's
estimates of the assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The availability of observable inputs varies by instrument. In situations where fair value is
based on internally developed pricing models or inputs that are unobservable in the market,
the determination of fair value requires more judgment. In many instances, inputs used to
measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, for
disclosure purposes, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement is categorized is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Premiums Written on Property and Casualty Insurance and Life Insurance

Property and casualty premiums written are recorded on the effective date of the contract and
earned on a pro rata basis over the terms ofthe policies. Premiums earned include premiums
assumed and are presented net of premiums ceded under various reinsurance contracts.
Premiums receivable and agents’ balances are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of
$10,095,000 and $10,648,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company considers an account delinquent if payment is not received according to the
contractual terms of the related insurance policy. Typically, accounts are charged off after
attempts to collect the funds are exhausted by internal and external sources. The Company
generally does not charge interest on delinquent accounts.

The Company annually evaluates whether a premium deficiency exists relating to short-
duration and long-duration contracts. With the exception of short-duration contracts written by
PGC, anticipated investment income is considered as part of the evaluation. The Company
reported no net premium deficiency reserves as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 after taking
into account reinsurance cessions and related deferred acquisition cost (DAC) eliminations.

Termm life and whole life insurance premiums are generally recognized as premium income
when received. Revenue from immedate annuities and supplemental contracts with life
contingencies is recognized at the time of issue. Benefits and expenses are associated with
earned premiums so as to result in recognition of profits over the life of the contracts. The
association is accomplished by means of the provision for liabilities for future policy benefits



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

and the amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs. Premium income is recorded net of
premiums due to reinsurers. Commissions and other expenses are recorded net of
allowances received from reinsurers.

For invesiment-type and universal life insurance contracts, premium deposits and benefit
payments are recorded as increases or decreases in a liability account, rather than as
revenue and expense. Revenue is recognized for any amounts charged against the liability
account for the cost of insurance, policy administration, and surrender penalties. Expense is
recorded for any interest credited to the liability account and any benefit payments which
exceed the contract liability account balance.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs that are directly related to the successful acquisition of new or renewal insurance
confracts are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable. These costs
include, but are not limited to, commissions, certain costs of policy issuance and underwriting,
and certain agency expenses. All other acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. For
property and casualty contracts, deferred costs are amortized as the related premiums are
earned. For temm life insurance contracts, deferred costs are amortized with interest in relation
to future anticipated premium revenue, using the same assumptions that are used In
calculating the insurance liabilites. For traditional whole life insurance contracts, deferred
costs are amortized in relation to the present value of expected gross margins, discounted
using the interest rate earned on the underlying assets. For deposit contracts without
significant mortality risk (investment-type contracts) and for contracts that permit the Company
or the policyholder to make changes in the confract terms {universal life insurance contracts),
deferred costs are amortized in relation to the present value of expected gross profits from
these contracts, discounted using the interest rate credited to the policy or the expected
earnings rate, depending on the type of policy.

The Companies regularly evaluate the recoverability of the unamortized balance of DAC. For
property and casualty insurance, if DAC were to exceed the sum of unearned premiums and
related anticipated investiment income less expected losses and loss adjustment expenses
and policy maintenance costs, the excess cost would be expensed immediately. For term life
insurance contracts, the unamortized asset balance is reduced by a charge to income only
when the estimated remaining gross premium reserve exceeds the GAAP reserves reduced
by unamortized DAC. For fraditional whole life insurance contracts, the accumulated
amortization is adjusted (whether an increase or a decrease) whenever there is a material
change in the estimated gross margins expected over the life of a block of business in order to
maintain a constant relationship between the cumulative amortization and the present value
(discounted at the rate of interest earned on the underlying assets) of expected gross margins.
For universal life and investment-type insurance contracts, the accumulated amortization is
adjusted (whether an increase or a decrease) whenever there is a material change in the
estimated gross profits expected over the life of a block of business in order to maintain a
constant relationship between the cumulative amortization and the present value of expected
gross profits.

DAC is also adjusted when bonds are recorded at fair value for traditional whole life, universal
life, and investment-type insurance contracts. This adjustiment, which is recorded as part of
the net appredation {depreciation) of securities in accumulated other comprehensive income,
reflects the change in cumulative amortization that would have been recorded if these bonds
had been sold at their fair values and the proceeds were reinvested at current yields.

10



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

f.

Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve

The property and casualty loss and loss adjustment expense reserve, including health
insurance, includes amounts determined on the basis of claim evaluation and other estimates
for reported losses, and includes estimates for losses incurred but not reported and
anticipated salvage and subrogation recoveries (health insurance does not include salvage).
These estimates are continually reviewed and updated and any adjusiments are reflected
currently.  Accordingly, losses and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as
incurred.

Reinsurance recoveries are recorded as a reduction of losses and loss adjusiment expenses
in accordance with confract terms.

The liability for gross long-term care claims has been discounted on a tabular basis using
morbidity from the 1982 through 1994 National Long-term Care Surveys and 1985 National
Nursing Home Surveys at 4.5%. The liabilities include $8,276,000 and $8,373,000 of such
discounted reserves at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Companies’ long-
term care business is 100% ceded to Ability Insurance Company, a nonaffiliated company.

Due to the reasonably complex and dynamic process of establishing these reserves, which
can be influenced by a variety of factors and assumptions, the actual ultimate losses and loss
adjustment expenses which may emerge in future years may vary from the amounts recorded
in these consolidated financial statements.

Liabilities for Life and Deposit-Type Contracts

For term life insurance contracts, reserves are calculated using the net level premium method,
based on assumptions as to investment yields, mortality, withdrawals, expenses and
dividends. These assumptions are made at the time the contract is issued and are consistent
with assumptions used in the product pricing process. Assumptions are based on projections
from past Company experience and are modified only as necessary to reflect loss recognition.
In addition, an allowance is made for possible unfavorable deviations from selected
assumptions.

For traditional whole life insurance contracts, reserves are calculated based on the net level
policy benefit reserve. Interest assumptions are consistent with the policy dividend formula
and mortality assumptions and are based on the 1958, 1980 or 2001 CSO table. The interest
rate on current issues is 4.0% in both 2015 and 2014. Interest rates on all other issues are
between 2.5% and 5.0% in both 2015 and 2014.

For universal life, deposit-type and investment-type insurance contracts, reserves are based
on the contract account balance. Reserves for annuiies in payout status are calculated as
the present value of future benefits using confract interest rates and either the 1971, 1983 or
2000 Immediate Annuity Mortality table.

i



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Gross reserves by type of contract at December 31 are as follows:

{in thousands of dolfars) 2015 2014
Insurance-type liabilities

Traditional whole life $ 2,410,668 591 % $ 2347750 586 %
Traditional term life 456,077 112 440,413 110
Payout annuities 49,362 12 50 497 13
Other insurance reserves 8,549 02 8,058 02
Deposit-type liabilities

Universal life 490,132 12.0 491,154 123
Deferred annuities 264,784 65 263,225 66
Dividend accumulations 238,939 59 239,430 60
Structured setiements 44 827 1.1 48 284 12
Variable universal life 14,419 04 14622 04
Variable annuities 12,671 03 13,127 03

Supplemental contracts without
life contingencies, retained assets
and premium deposits 89,833 2.1 92 060 2.1

Total liabilities for life policies
and depositcontracts $ 4,080,261 1000 % % 4,008,620 100.0 %

Life Policyholders Dividends Payable

Approximately 98 2% of the Company’s life contracts are considered participating policies.
The Company accounts for policyholder dividends based upon dividend scales approved by
AFLIC's Board of Directors. The amount of dividends to be paid is determined annually.
Participating policyholders generally have the option to direct their dividends to be paid in
cash, used to reduce future premiums due, used to purchase additional insurance benefits or
left on deposit with the Company to accumulate interest. Dividends used by policyholders to
purchase additional insurance benefits are reported as premiums in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. The Company's annual declaration includes a
guarantee of a minimum aggregate amount of dividends to be paid to policyholders as a group
in the subsequent year. The portion of the Company's earnings allocated as dividends is
included in policyholders’ dividends payable.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Companies seek to limit their exposure to loss on any
single insured and to certain aggregate loss limits. This is accomplished by ceding insurance
to other insurance companies or reinsurers under quota share, excess of loss and
coinsurance confracts. Liabilities related to insurance contracts are reported gross of the
effects of reinsurance. Estimated reinsurance recoverable is recognized in a manner
consistent with the liahilities related to the underlying reinsured contracts.

ASIC assumes property reinsurance mainly outside the Companies’ existing geographic
operating territory in order to diversify the Companies’ risk. Property and casualty earned
premiums assumed under reinsurance contracts under this program during 2015 and 2014
were $81,653,000 and $76,581,000, respectively.

12



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries
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Property and casualty earned premiums ceded under reinsurance contracts during 2015 and
2014 were $163,008,000 and $320,965,000, respectively. Gross written premiums ceded
during 2015 and 2014 were $136,795,000 and $229 428000, respectively. Unearned
premiums ceded under reinsurance contracts were $56,979,000 and $83,192,000 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Loss and loss adjustment expenses ceded under
reinsurance contracts were $107 480,000 and $74,558,000 for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Life reinsurance premiums ceded were $78,287 000 and $75,814,000 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Life reserves ceded under reinsurance contracts were $204,023,000 and
$194,474,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Reinsurance commissions and
expense allowances were $23,576,000 and $22,684,000 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Life
and Accident and Health insurance benefits on ceded claims were $41,835,000 and
$31,478,000 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Companies do not enter into finite reinsurance contracts; all reinsurance contracts involve
a significant transfer ofrisk. Ceded reinsurance transactions do not relieve the Company of its
prnmary obligation to the policyholder.

j- Income Taxes

The Companies file a consolidated federal income tax return and are subject to a tax
allocation agreement under which each members tax liability equals or approximates
separate return calculations with current credit for net losses and tax credits utilized by other
members of the group. Deferred taxes are established for the future tax effects of temporary
differences between the tax and financial reporting bases of assets and liabiliies using
currently enacted tax rates. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period of enactment. Deferred tax assets (DTAs) are valued based upon the
expectation of future realization on a “more likely than not” basis. A valuation allowance is
established for that portion of DTAs which cannot meet this realization standard. Based on all
available evidence, a valuation allowance is not needed as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

k. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, including sofiware, is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Deprediation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
ranging from three to forty-five years. The Company reviews fixed assets for impairment when
there is reason to believe that a fixed asset's carrying value might not be recoverable, and
charges any impairments to earnings.

The gross cost, accumulated depreciation and net cost of major classes of property and
equipment as of December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
i thousands of dolfars) Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net

Property occupied by the Company 3 470512 % (231611) $ 238,801 $ 454,175 § (222587) $ 231,588
Furniture and equipment 221,787 {137.412) 84,375 212,912 {133,816) 79,297
Computer software and equipment 872,334 (5336532 333,702 FililiRstae] (452,155) 284504

$ 1564633 § (902,855 § 661,978 § 1433747 § (835,358) § 5O5.2389
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired in business
combinations. Goodwill is not amortized, but is reviewed for impairment at least annually and
whenever there is an impairment indicator, using a fair value based approach.

Intangible Assets

The establishment of intangible assets and the determination of estimated useful lives are
pnmarily based on valuations received from qualified independent appraisers as a result of the
acquisitions of Homesite, PGC and MIC in prior years. The calculations of these amounts are
based on estimates and assumptions using historical and pro forma data and recognized
valuation methods. Different estimates or assumptions could produce different results.
Contractual or separable intangible assets that have finite useful lives are amortized against
income over their estimated useful lives using either a straight-line method or a weighted-
average method based on projected pre-tax income generated by the intangible assets over
their estimated useful lives. Indefinitedived intangible assets are not subject to amortization.

The Company at least annually evaluates the remaining useful lives of its intangible assets
with a finite life to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a revision to the
remaining period of amortization. The Company evaluates its indefinite-lived intangible assets
for impairment on at least an annual basis. The Company evaluates its finite-lived intangible
assets for impairment when circumstances indicate an impairment may have occurred.

See Note 6 for more information on intangible assets.

Leases

The Company leases various office equipment and real estate under various noncancelable
operating lease agreements with various expiration dates through 2020 and thereafter. Lease
expense for 2015 and 2014 was $38,095,000 and $38,098,000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015, the minimum aggregate lease commitments were as follows:

fin thousands of dollars) Operating
Year ending December 31 Leases
2016 $ 24101
2017 17,259
2018 15,753
2019 12,092
2020 and thereafter 30,673
Total $ 99,878

Certain lease commitments have renewal options extending through the year 2034. Some of
these renewals are subject to adjustments in future periods.

Separate Accounts

Separate account assets include segregated funds invested by the Company as designated
by VUL and VA policy owners in shares of mutual funds managed by outside fund managers
offered as investment vehicles for American Family Variable Accounts | or [I. The assets
(investments) and liabilities (to policy owners) of each account are clearly identifiable and
distinguishable from other assets and liabiliies of the Company. Assets are valued at fair
value and liabilities are equal to the amount due to the policy owner without a reduction for
surrender charges. The investment income, gains and losses of these accounts generally
accrue to the policy owners, and, therefore, are not included in the Company’s net income.
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Adoption of New Accounting Guidance

Reporting of Amotnts Reclassified Out of Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance
requiring entities to present either in a single note or parenthetically on the face of the financial
statements, the effect of significant amounts reclassified from each component of
accumulated other comprehensive income based on its source and the income statement line
items affected by the reclassification. If the component is not required to be reclassified to net
income in its entirety, entities would instead cross reference to the related footnote for
additional information. The Company adopted this guidance on January 1, 2014. The new
guidance affects presentation of accumulated other comprehensive income only; therefore,
the adoption of this guidance had no impact on the Company's results of operations or
financial position.

Future Adoption of New Accounting Guidance

Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts

In May 2015, the FASB issued guidance requiring expanded disclosures for insurance entities
that issue short-duration contracts. The expanded disclosures are designed to provide
additional insight into an insurance entity’s ability to underwrite and anticipate costs associated
with claims. The disclosures include information about incurred and paid claims development
by accident year, significant changes in methodologies and assumptions, and a reconciliation
of incurred and paid claims development to the carrying amount of the liability for unpaid
claims and claim adjustment expenses. The guidance is effective retrospectively for non-public
entities for accounting reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The Company will adopt this guidance on January 1, 2017. Except for
the disclosure requirements, the Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Statements of Cash Flows

Non-cash investing activities include $85,993,000 of acquisitions and disposals of common
stock, $180,723,000 and $182 999,000 of acquisitions and disposals of bonds, respectively,
and net acquisitions of short-term investments of $2 276,000 in 2015.

Reclassifications and Revisions

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements to conform to current year presentation and allow for
consistent financial reporting.

The revision of an immaterial error resulted in reclassifications of $6,956,000 from other
liahilities to property and casualty loss and loss adjustment expense reserve on the 2014
consolidated balance sheet and $830,000 from insurance reserves to other changes in
operating assets and liabilities on the 2014 consolidated statement of cash flows.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2015 through February 29,
2016, the date these financial statements were available to be issued. Based on this
evaluation, no events have occurred subsegquent to December 31, 2015 that require
disclosure or adjustment to the financial statements at that date or for the year then ended.
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2.

Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value guidance establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in determining fair value that
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by
requiring that observable inputs be used when available.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant
who owns an asset or owes a liability. Accordingly, when market observable data is not
readily available, the Company's own assumptions are set to reflect those that market
participants would be presumed to use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. The Company uses prices and inputs that are current as of the measurement date,
including during penods of market disruption. In periods of market disruption, the ability to
observe prices and inputs may be reduced for many instruments. This condition could cause
an instrument to be reclassified from one level of the hierarchy to another.

When available, the Company uses the market approach to estimate the fair value of its
financial instruments, which is based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available
in active markets. Generally, these are the most liquid of the Company's holdings and
valuation of these securities does not involve management judgment. Matrix pricing and other
similar techniques are other examples of the market approach. Matrix pricing values a
particular security by utilizing the prices of securities with similar ratings, maturities, indusiry
classifications, and/or coupons and interpolating among known values of these similar
instruments to derive a price.

When quoted prices in aclive markets are not available, the Company uses the income
approach, or a combination of the market and income approaches, to estimate the fair value of
its financial instruments. The income approach involves using discounted cash flow and other
standard valuation methodologies. The inputs in applying these market standard valuation
methodologies include, but are not limited to, interest rates, benchmark vyields, bid/ask
spreads, dealer quotes, liquidity, term to maturity, estimated future cash flows, credit risk and
default projections, collateral performance, deal and tranche attributes, and general market
data.

The following valuation techniques and inputs were used to estimate the fair value of each
class of significant financial instruments:

Level 1 Measurements

Bonds: U.5. Government. Comprised of U.S. Treasuries valued based on unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets in aclive markets.

Common Stocks: Comprised of actively traded, exchange listed U.S. and international equity
secunties. Valuation is based on unadjusted guoted prices for identical assets in active
markets that the Company can access.

Cash Equivalents: Comprised of actively raded money market funds that have daily quoted
net asset values for identical assets that the Company can access and U.S. Treasuries valued
based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in active markets.
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Short-term Investiments:. Comprised of US. Treasuries valued based on unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets in active markets.

Level 2 Measurements

Bonds. The Company uses leading, nationally recognized providers of market data and
analytics to price a vast majority of the Company's Level 2 fair value measurements for fixed
income securities. These securities are principally valued using the market and income
approaches. When available, recent trades of identical or similar assets are used to price
these securities. However, because many fixed income securities do not actively rade on a
daily basis, pricing models are often used to determine security prices. The pricing models
discount future cash flows at estimated market interest rates. These rates are derived by
calculating the appropriate spreads over comparable US. Treasury securities based on credit
quality, industry, and structure of the asset. Observable inputs used by the models include
benchmark yields, bid/ask spreads, dealer quotes, liquidity, term to maturity, credit risk and
default projections, collateral performance, deal and tranche attributes, and general market
data. Inputs may vary depending on type of security.

A small segment of Level 2 and Level 3 securities are priced internally using matrix pricing,
broker quotes, and benchmark and spread analysis, or through third party vendors that
spedialize in dificult-to-price secunties. Pricing for specific security types is as follows:

Corporates, including privately placed: These securities are principally valued using the
market and income approaches. Valued based on inputs including quoted prices for
identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or using matrix pricing or other
similar techniques that use standard market observable inputs such as benchmark yield
curves, bid/ask spreads, and credit quality. Privately placed securities are valued using
internal matrix pricing and discounted cash flow methodologies using standard market
observable inputs including taxable and tax-exempt vield curves and market observable
ratings from external parties. Due to the relative illiquidity of private placements, illiquidity
premiums of 25 and 100 basis points are factored into the vield curve inputs for investment
grade and below investment grade secunties, respectively.

Municipals: Valued using the market and income approaches based on inputs including
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, benchmark yield
curves, bid/ask spreads, and credit quality.

U.S8. Govermmment: Valued using the market and income approaches based on inputs
including quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active,
benchmark vield curves, and bid/ask spreads.

Asset-Backed Securities (ABS), Residential Mortgage-backed Sectirities (RMBS), and
Commercial Mortgage-backed Securities (CMBS): Valued using the market and income
approaches based on inputs including quoted prices for identical or similar assets in
markets that are not active, benchmark yield curves, bid/ask spreads, default assumptions,
projected cash flows, collateral performance, deal structure, and tranche characteristics.

Common Stocks: Comprised of shares in Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago (FHLBC)
stock as discussed in Note 10. While not actively traded, the valuation for the FHLBC
investment is perpetually quoted at $100 by the FHLBC.
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Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents are valued based on inputs including quoted prices for
identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, benchmark yield curves, bidfask
spreads, and credit quality.

Short-term Invesiments. Short-term investments are valued based on quoted prices for
identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, benchmark yield curves, bidfask
spreads, and credit quality.

Derivative Instruments: Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives, including interest rate swaps, are
valued using models that rely on inputs such as interest rate yield curves that are observable
for substantially the full term of the contract. These models discount cash flows at each
coupon date and the valuation of interest rate swaps is the difference between the values of
the discounted cash flows of the fixed and floating legs of the swap. Fair value is the
estimated amount that the Company would receive (pay) to terminate the derivative contracts
at the reporting date. Derivative assets (liabilities) are reported gross of collateral payable
(receivable) for purposes of fair value disclosures in Note 2(e).

Separate Account Assets: Comprised of mutual funds traded in non-active markets that have
daily quoted net asset values for identical assets that the Company can access. Net asset
values for the actively traded mutual funds in which the separate account assets are invested
are obtained daily from the fund managers.

Long-term Debt. Comprised of an FHLBC fixed-rate advance, for which daily published
interest rates are available. See Note 2(h) for additional valuation methodology.

Level 3 Measurements

Bonds:

Corporates. Valued using cash flow modeling and the mid-point of actual bid and ask
market quotes from global and regional banks, broker/dealers, and exchanges.

Municipals: Includes a bond issued to reimburse costs incurred by the developer {(which is
the Company) at the Mitchell Avenue Corridor Project 1 TIF location in St Joseph,
Missouri. This is the location of the Company's Missouri regional office building, and the
Company is the sole property owner within the TIF boundary. The City of St. Joseph
collects TIF property taxes from the Company and is obligated to request that the city
council appropriate these tax payments to pay debt service on the bonds. The bond is
priced at 100 as the Company is essentially backing this bond through property tax
payments. Also includes a bond valued internally using a discounted cash flow model and
a bond valued externally using broker quotes.

ABS, RMBS and CMBS: Valued using cash flow modeling and non-binding broker quotes
received from brokers who are familiar with these generally illiquid investments. The cash
flow model uses prepayment, default and severity assumptions, benchmark yields and
spreads and weighted average lives as inputs. A portion of secunties are valued using
trader marked bid side dollar prices and spreads to updated swaps curves from a third
party pricing vendor. A small segment is valued from non-binding external sources where
unobservable inputs are not readily available.
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Derivative Instruments: To-be-announced (TBA) dollar roll securiies are valued using the
market and income approaches by leading, nationally recognized providers of market data and
analytics. When available, recent trades of identical or similar assets are used to price these
securities.

Other Valuations

Includes private equity investments presented using equity and cost methods of accounting,
policy loans carried at their outstanding principal balance, mortgage loans carried at their
outstanding principal amount and cash. Also includes trust preferred debentures carried at
their outstanding principal balance.

The following summarizes the Company’'s financial assets and liabiliies measured at fair value

as of December 31:

2015

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Significant Cther

Significant

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Cther Balance as of
{in thousands of dollars) [Level 13 [Lewvel 2) [Level 3) Valuations Decernber 31, 20156
Financial assets
EBonds, available-for-sale:
U5, Government $ 703,862 F 47,920 F - $ $ 751,802
Municipals - 4,978,332 17417 4,992,749
Corporates 4,533,745 - 4,533,745
RMES 775,193 2 775198
CMES 813,727 8B0 514 277
ABS - 769,469 93,836 - 863,107
Common stocks, available-for-sale 2097976 12,028 - 28,048 2,138,048
Cash equivalents 448110 - - 448110
Short-term investrents 208,308 43,887 - 252,198
Derivative as sets 333 63,038 63,371
Separate account assets 292 429 - - 292 429
Total recurring basis assets 3488277 12,067,080 174,645 25,048 18,725,030
“alued at cost, amortizzd cost or
using the equity method - - 1,733,318 1,733,318
Total financial assets i 3.458277 i 12,067,060 b 174,645 $ 1.781.386 b 17. 461,348
Long-terrn debt 599,994 - 36,083 836,077
Drerivative liabilities 1,765 54,762 BE.567
Total financial liabilifie s i i 801,778 b 54,762 b 36,063 b 552,644
2014
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Cther Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Cther Balance as of
{in thousands of dollars) [Lewvel 13 [Lewvel 2) [Lewvel 3) Valuations Decernber 31, 2014
Financial assets
EBonds, available-for-sale:
U5, Government $ 411,996 F 138,094 F - $ $ 547,089
Municipals - 4,950,906 18,191 4,970,098
Corporates 4,413,476 9,748 4,423,224
RMES 1,100,366 2 1,100,368
CMES 546,976 257 b47 265
ABS - 783,181 73,083 - B2E.254
Common stocks, available-for-sale 2,179,397 13,326 - 16228 2208948
Cash equivalents 280,282 3,732 - 283,994
Short-term investrents 121,085 45,008 166,071
Derivative as sets - 3,041 3,041
Separate account assets - 318,098 - - 318,098
Total recurring basis assets 2,992,719 12,263,171 102,311 16,228 18,394 426
“alued at cost, amortizzd cost or
using the equity method - - - 1,811,153 1,811,153
Total financial assets i 2,992,718 i 12,263,171 b 102,311 $ 1.827.378 b 17.006.5789
Long-terrn debt 524,021 36,083 560,104
Drerivative liabilities 16,798 - 16,798
Total financial liabilifie s i i 542,816 b - i 36,063 b 575,699
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As part of its pricing procedures, the Company obtains quotes from leading providers of
prcing data, and the Company's internal pricing policy is to use consistent sources for
individual securities based on security type in order to maintain the integrity of its valuation
process. These primary quotes are validated on a quarterly basis via comparison to a
secondary pricing source, which may include guotes received from a different third party
pricing data provider or recent rade activity obtained from reputable online trading sites.
Investment managers may be consulted to corroborate prices received from outside sources
based on their knowledge of market trends and activity. As necessary, the Company utilizes
pricing services that specialize in difficult-to-value securities to price esoteric or illiquid
securiies.  Material discrepancies between the prnmary and secondary sources are
investigated, reconciled and updated as warranted. This may involve challenging a price from
the primary source if the Company determines the price provided does not meet expectations
based on observed market, sector, or security trends and activity.

On an annual basis the Company reviews quality control measures and data assumptions
from its pricing sources to determine if any significant changes have occurred that may
indicate issues or concems regarding their evaluation or market coverage. In addition, an
annual analysis is performed on a sample of securities to further validate the inputs,
assumptions, and methodologies used by the primary source to price those securities.

During the course of the valuation process, if it is determined the material inputs used to price
a secunty are unobservable, the Company will transfer that secunty to Level 3.

All transfers into or out of a particular level are recognized as of the beginning of the reporting
period. In 2015, the Company transferred $8,139,000 of ABS securities from Level 2 to Level
3. In 2015, a third party pricing service began pricing these bonds using unobservable inputs.
The Company also transferred $4,886,000 of Corporate securities and $25,273,000 of ABS
securities from Level 3 to Level 2. In 2015, a third party pricing service began pricing these
bonds using observable inputs. Previously, these securities were priced by another pricing
vendor using unobservable inputs. There were no other material transfers between levels in
2015,

In 2014, the Company transferred $7 871,000 of ABS securities from Level 2 to Level 3.
These securities were purchased near the end of 2013 and the purchase prices were used to
determine year-end prices, resulting in a Level 2 designation. In 2014 a third party pricing
service began pricing these securiies using unobservable inputs, resulting in a change to
Level 3. The Company also transfemred $1,574,000 of CMBS securities from Level 2 to Level
3 during 2014. This bond was previously priced by a third party pricing service using
observable inputs but is now priced manually through a different third party pricing service
using unobservable inputs. In 2014, the Company also transferred $3,900,000 of other
invested assets from Other Valuations to Level 3. These partnerships were previously valued
using capital account valuations as reported by the various limited partnerships. In the second
quarter of 2014 they were valued using agreed-upon sale prices which resulted in their
transfer to Level 3. These partnerships were all subsequenily sold during 2014, There were
no other material transfers between levels in 2014,
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The following provides a summary of changes in fair value during the year ended December
31, of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities held at fair value on a recurring basis at December
31

2015
Total Realimd and Unreali=d
i5aing (Lozzaz) indudad in

Mt
Tranzfarz In
Balancaaz of AOCIon andfar [ Cut) Balanca az of
{in thouzandz of dallare) January 1,2015  Matlncoma  Balanca Shaat Purchazaz Salaz Sattlarmartz  of Lawal 3 Dacambar31, 2015
Financisl szzalz
Bondz, available-for-zala:
Municipalz 3 19191 § 101§ 92§ - §i1Een 0§ 28 0§ - 3 17,47
Corporatas 9,748 a7 101 - {4,990 (1m {4,526) -
RMVES 2 - - - - - - 2
CES 287 - - 550 (287 - - 550
ABS 73,083 (B =04 54,943 (27 B12) {19,183) {17134 93,638
Totsl recurring Level 3
{inancisl az= etz 102,311 78 (208 55,493 24,770 (19.279) (22020 111,607
D arivativa azz atz - 18 10 75,5840 125230 - - 63,088
Totsl Level 3 linancisl as zetz § 102311 _§ 96§ (196) 161,033 $47300) $19.279) $(22020) § 174,645
Financisl Eabiitiez
D arivativa liabiliiaz - (15 (= 57,354 (2.549) - - 54,752
Totsl Level 3 i il Iiz bilit 3 - 3 (5 _§ (2) _§ 67354 _§ (2545) _F - [ 3 54,752
2014
Total Realimd and Unreali=d
Gainz (Lozzes)indudad in
Mt
Tranzfarz In
Balancaaz of AOCIon andfar [ Cut) Balanca az of
{in thouzandz of dallare] January 1, 2014 Matlncoms  Balanca Sheast Purchazasz Salaz Sattlarmartz of Lawal3 Dacambar31, 2014
Financisl szzalz
Bondz, available-for-zala:
Municipalz 3 17,880 ¥ - ¥ Iz0 F 1,702 ¥ - F (71N % - ¥ 19,191
Corporatas 5,365 (zm 148 5913 - {1,658 - 9,748
RNES 3 - - - - n - 2
CNES - - =) - - {1,278 1,574 287
ABS 20,926 (B (224 53,083 - {22,395) 7.871 73,083
Totsl recurring Level 3
iinancial azz etz 54,174 28 175 65,648 - (27,043 9,445 12z
Otharirvastad az 2ate - (862 - 473 2.141 (379) 3,800 -
Total Level 2 linancisl az etz ¥ 54,174 ¥ (950 ¥ 175 F 66126 Fi3.141) Fi27418) F 13345 ¥ 102311

There were no gains or losses included in net income for Level 3 instruments siill held at
December 31, 2015 or 2014.
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The following table summarizes quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs
used to value Level 3 securities as of December 31:

Fair¥ahe at Valualion Unobservable
{ir thowsands of dollars) 123172015 Technique Input Range
Municipals § 13957  Cashflowmodeling Spread{Discountmargin) 581 bps (added 1o
ST with sim ilar maturity)
3460 Parwalue Badied by property &x payments  Priced atpar
made by the Com pany
Corporates 52,250  Cashfowmodeling Spread (Discountmargin) T0-610
Condifonal prepaymentrate 20
Severity 30-70
8,245  Parvalue Badied by property Priced at par

Significantuncbsenable inputs notavailable
Financial Assets

Bonds 3,695
TBAs 63,038
Financial Liabilifes
TBAs 154,782)
Togl inputs notavailable 11,951
Tokl Level 3 Secunfes $ 119,863
Fair¥ahe at Valualion Unobservable
{ir thowsands of dollars) 123172014 Technique Input Range
Municipals § 13874 Cashfowmodeling Spread{Discountmargin) 581 bps (added 1o
ST with sim ilar maturity)
3820 Parwalue Badied by property &x payments  Priced atpar
made by the Com pany
1,697 Broker quotes Bid quotes 70.988
Corporates 4862  Broker quotes Bid quotes a7.25
983 Cashfowmodeling Discountmargin 135
3803 Cashfowmodeling Spread(Discountmargin) 380 bps (added to
ST with sim ilar maturity)
CKBS 287 Cashfowmodeling Weighted average life <1 year
Spread (Discountmargin) 60 bps
ABS 73,083 Cashfowmodelng Spread (Discountmargin) 20-300
Condifonal prepaymentrate 0-20
Severity 30-70
Bid quotes 99.86-100.76
Askguotes 10017
Significantuncbsenable inputs notavailable 2
Tokl Level 3 Secunfes § 102311
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Mortgage Loans

The fair value of mortgage loans is based upon discounted future cash flows using the current
rates at which similar loans with comparable maturities would be made to borrowers with
similar credit ratings.

Policy Loans

Policy loans represent amounts borrowed from the Company by life insurance policyholders,
secured by the cash value of the related policies, and are reported at unpaid principal balance.
Policy loans have no stated maturity dates and are an integral part of the related insurance
contract. The carrying value of policy loans approximates the fair value. The interest rate for
policy loans on currentissues was 8% in both 2015 and 2014.

Deferred Annuities and Structured Settlements

Fair values for deferred annuities are based on the cash surrender value of the policies. Fair
values for structured settlements are based on the present value of expected payments using
current crediting interest rates.

Fair Value

The fair values of the Companies’ significant finandal instruments that are carried on the
consolidated balance sheets at a value other than fair value or are not disclosed on the face of
the consolidated balance sheets or elsewhere in the notes at December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
{inn thousands of dolfars} Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets
Mortgage loans $ 527,179 $ 544706 $ 483,404 $ 520,756
Policyloans 212,987 212,987 218,498 218,498
Financial liabilities
Deferred annuities 264,784 263,115 263,225 260,974
Structured setlements 58,693 70,060 62,189 74,719
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Common Stocks

The aggregate cost of common stocks at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $1,458,255,000
and $1,333,147,000, respectively. Net unrealized appreciation of common stocks stated at
fair value includes gross unrealized gains of $713,843,000 and $899,599,000 and gross
unrealized losses of $34,049,000 and $23,798,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

The fair value and unrealized losses, categorized by stocks in loss positions for less than 12
months and stocks in loss positions for more than 12 months at December 31 are as follows:

215

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
{fn thousands of dollars, Number Fair Unrealized Number Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
exceptnumber ofissues) oflssues Value Losses of lssues Value Losses Value Losses
Description of Securities:
Common stocks 482 $ 21009 $ (2F.088) 2BE i 21,364 b (8.981) $231.455 § (34049
Total 482 $ 21009 $ (27.088) 2B2 b 21,364 5 [5,981) $ 231,455 F  (34.049
2014
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
{fn thousands of dollars, Number Fair Unrealized Number Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
exceptnumber ofissues) oflssues Value Losses of lssues Value Losses Value Losses
Description of Securities:
Common stocks 821 $ 143370 F 774 3 b 1,980 b (B.624) $145.360 $ (23.798)
Total 521 $ 143370 F 1774 3 5 1,980 5 [B.624) $ 145,360 $ (23.798)

The Company believes that declines in fair value related to these stocks are temporary. In
determining whether the declines in fair value are temporary, the Company considers severity
of impairment, duration of impairment, forecasted market price recovery, and the intent and
ability of the Company to hold the investment until the market price has recovered.

During 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded other-than-temporary impairments (OTTI)
relating to its common stock portfolio of $14,820,000 and $7,932,000, respectively.

Proceeds from sales of stock during 2015 and 2014 were $824,068,000 and $1,002,790,000,
respectively. These amounts exclude spin-offs, tax-free exchanges, taxable exchanges and
returns of capital. Gross gains of $193,610,000 and $409,030,000 and gross losses of
$56,385,000 and $10,592,000 were realized on those sales during 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The basis of the securities sold was determined using specific identification.

The Company made charitable contributions of common stock with a fair value of $36, 272,000
and $1,695000 during 2015 and 2014, respectively. As a result of these donations, the
Company realized gains of $29,707 000 and $1 665,000 during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company's common stock portfolios are primarily invested in large, mid, and small cap
stocks which are managed to their respective indices. A portion of the large cap portfolio is
weighted toward dividend paying stocks within the Russell 3000 Index. Positions held in
master limited parinerships as of December 31, 2014 were liquidated during 2015. Further
separation of equity securities by geography or industry concentration is not deemed relevant.
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C. Bonds and Short-Term Investments
The amortized cost and fair value of bonds and short-term investments at December 31 are as
follows:
2015
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

{in thousands ofdoliars) Cost Gains Losses Value
Description of Securities:
U5 Treasurysecurities and
obligations of U5, government
corporaftions and agencies $ 968,881 $ 1,852 $ (5,620) % 965,113
Obligations ofstates and
polifical subdivisions 4,885,182 136,201 (6,778) 5,014,605
Corporate 4,553,818 99,126 (104,440) 4,548,504
Residential mortgage-backed secunties 766,395 16,195 (4,396) 778,194
Commercial mortgage-backed securties 615,393 7.332 (5,448) 614,277
Assetbacked securifies 862,591 7,954 (5,167) 865,378

Total $ 12,652,260 $ 268,660 $ (134,849) $ 12,786,071

2014
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

{in thousands ofdoliars) Cost Gains Losses Value
Description of Securities:
U5 Treasurysecurities and
obligations of U5, government
corporaftions and agencies $ 660268 % 8,267 $ (382) % 668,153
Obligations ofstates and
polifical subdivisions 4,809,572 209,909 (6,197) 5,013,284
Corporate 4,247 814 214,162 (38,753) 4,423,223
Residential mortgage-backed secunties 1,073,867 31,180 (4,679) 1,100,368
Commercial mortgage-backed securties 528,110 19,468 (313) 547,265
Assetbacked securifies 816,306 13,437 (1,689) 828,054

Total $ 12,135,937 $ 496,423 $ (52,013) $ 12,580,347
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The fair value and unrealized losses, categorized by bonds in loss positions for less than 12
months and bonds in loss positions for more than 12 months at December 31 are as follows:

2015

Lezs than 12 Months 12 Monthz or More Total

{in thowasndz of doffara, Mumber Fair Unreslized Mum ber Fair Unreslized Fair Unrealirzed
excepl number of izauea) ol lzzues Value Lozzas ollzzues Value Lozz ez Value Lozzas
Description ol Securities:
.S Traazury 2acuritisg and
obligationz of LS. govarnmant
corporations and agancias 71 3 AfS, 149 3 (4,3 64) 7 3 &7.011 3 (1,256 3 T3I5,160 3 (5,620
Cbligationz of 2tataz and
political subdivizions = 804,565 (5,572) 46 127,003 (1,208) 1,021,568 (6,778
Corporata 73z 1,992,277 (74,487 10z 220,219 (29,953 2,220,096 (104,440)
Razidantial mortgage-backad 2acuritias 92 244,118 (1,919 a0 82,949 (2,47 327067 (4,396
Commarcial mortgage-backad 2acuritiag 136 402,799 (8372 & 8,865 (T8 411,664 (8,448
A zzat-backed zacurities 194 621,823 (4.261) 12 22,624 (306 644,507 (5167

Total 1,522 k] 4,829,731 ¥ (99,575) 204 ¥ 509,321 ¥ (35,274 ¥ 5,420,062 F (134,849

2014
Lezs than 12 Months 12 Monthz or More Total

{ir thowssnds of doilars, Mumber Fsir Unreslized Mum ber Fsir Unreslized Fsir Unreslized
excepl number of izauea) ol lzzues Value Lozzas ollzzues Value Lozz ez Value Lozzas
Dezcription ol Securities:
U.S. Treazury = acuritiez and
obligationz of U.S. governmart
corporations and agancias 24 ¥ 277344 3 (298) 10 ¥ 6327 ¥ 24y % 283,671 3 (382
Cbligationz of 2tataz and
political subdivizions 229 SE3,084 (4,240 &1 149,917 (1,857 1,012,001 (6,197
Corporata 250 616,254 (22322) 125 345,297 {18,431) 962,151 {28,793)
Razidantial mortgage-backad 2acuritias 12 15,526 [=Fa) &7 217,274 (4622 Z3z,800 [EX=ri=1]
Commarcial mortgage-backad 2acuritiag 14 65,647 (207) 11 12,080 (108 &TETT =13
A zzat-backed zacurities 109 S265,234 (1.248) 17 22,358 (4413 257,592 (1.629

Total 40 k] 2,153,029 ¥ [28,472) 281 ¥ FE3, 202 ¥ (22,5417 ¥ 2,516,802 ¥ (52,013

If the Company has the intent to sell or will more likely-than-not be required to sell a fixed
income security prior to full recovery, the Company writes down the security to its current fair
value with the entire write-down recorded as a realized loss in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. |f the Company does not have the intent to sell but the fixed income
security is in an unrealized loss position, the Company determines if any of the decline in
value is due to a areditrelated loss (the present value of the expected future cash flows
(PVCF) is less than amortized cost). Other-than-temporary credit-related impairments are
recorded in earnings when the PVCF is less than the amortized cost.  Any non-credit-related
impairments, such as those related to movement in interest rates, are included with unrealized
gains and losses in other comprehensive income. The Company believes that all other
unrealized losses related to bonds are temporary.

Credit-related OTTI losses recorded on bonds were $39,091,000 and $0 during 2015 and
2014, respectively. No portion of the OTTIl loss was included in accumulated other
comprehensive income. In determining OTTI, the Company considers severity of impairment,
duration of impairment, forecasted market price recovery, and the intent and ability of the
Company to hold the investment until the market price recovers or the investment matures to
assist in determining if a potential credit loss exists. Additionally, the Company may rely on
the details of setiements reached in bankrupicy proceedings or other restructurings to
determine ultimate collectability of these credits. The Company does not hold any impaired
fixed income securities where part of the impairment was considered credit-related (recorded
through the consolidated statements of comprehensive income) and part of the impairment
was non-credit-related (recorded through other comprehensive income).
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During 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded total OTTI relating to its bond portfolio of
$44,278,000 and $0, respectively. These amounts include both credit-related impairments as
well as impairments taken due to the intent to sell securities.

Subprnme morigages are residential loans to borrowers with weak credit profles. Alt A
mortgages are residential loans to borrowers who have credit profiles above subprime but do
not conform to traditional {prime) mortgage underwriting guidelines. The Company had
insignificant exposure to subprime and Alt A mortgages at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The amortized cost and fair value of bonds and short-term investments at December 31, 2015
by contractual maturity are shown as follows. Expected maturiies may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may exercise the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without penalties. Because most morigage-backed and asset-backed securities provide for
periodic payments throughout their lives, they are listed in a separate category as follows:

December 31,2015

Amortized Fair

{in thousands of doflars} Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 783716 $ 787219
Due after one year through five years 4,371,361 4,441,691
Due after five years through ten years 4,087,483 4087 ,670
Due after ten years 1,165,321 1,211,642

Subtotal 10,407 881 10528222
Mortgage-backed s ecurities 1,381,788 1,392,471
Asset-backed securities 862 591 865,378

Total $ 12,652 260 $ 12,786,071

Proceeds from sales of long-term bonds during 2015 and 2014 were $6,289,214,000 and
$4,401 009,000, respectively. Gross gains of $154,338,000 and $163,698,000 and gross
losses of $44,098,000 and $16,607 000 were realized on those sales during 2015 and 2014,
respeciively. The basis of the securities sold was determined using specific identification.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, bonds with a fair value of $66 548,000 and $65,302,000,
respectively, were on deposit with various regulatory authorities to comply with insurance
laws.
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Other Invested Assets

The Company held $327,150,000 and $276,483,000 in limited partnerships accounted for
under the cost method and $437,211,000 and $387,042,000 in limited partnerships accounted
for under the equity method at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. See Note 1(b) for
a description of spedific accounting practices regarding the cost and equity methods and Note
4 for a description of required future contributions to limited partnerships.

During 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded OTTI in the other invested assets portfolio,
resulting in a total realized loss of $15,264,000 and $8,671,000, respectively. The other-than-
temporarnly impaired investments were generally mature partnerships that had completed their
initial investment period. Some were in the process of liquidating investment holdings. These
partnerships may have experienced losses due to poor performance of a specific investment,
poor performance of a particular sector, or unfavorable market conditions in general. As there
was no clear indication of full recovery of value of these investments, OTTI losses were
realized.

The Company believes that no additional other invested assets in the portfolio are other-than-
temporanly impaired. In making this determination, the Company considers severity of
impairment, age of the partnership, percent of the total commiiment funded, performance of
the underlying investments, sector of the underlying invesiments, and the intent and abhility of
the Company to hold the investment until the value has fully recovered.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative financial instruments utilized by the Company during 2015 included interest rate
swap agreements and TBA dollar roll securities. The Company utilized interest rate swaps but
not TBA’'s in 2014.

In order to mitigate interest rate risk with respect to the Company’s investment portfolio and
general operations, the Company has entered into certain interest rate derivatives. All interest
rate swap instruments are subject to enforceable master netiing agreements and the
Company elects to net denvative asset and derivative liability positions with the same
counterparty on the consolidated balance sheets. Cash collateral payable (receivable) is
netted with derivative assets (liabiliies) and the net amount is recorded in other assets
(liabilities) on the consolidated balance sheets. TBA dollar roll securiies are not subject to
enforceable master netting agreements and thus there is no netting of derivative asset and
derivative liability positions with the same counterparty on the consolidated balance sheets.
Also, there is no collateral exchanged related to TBA dollar roll securities.
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Derivative instruments as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015
Statem ent of
{in fhousands of doffars) Balance Sheet Com prehensive Income
Notional Am ount
Derivatives designated as: (Par) Value Purpose Classification Fair ¥alue Clas sification Realized
Non-hedging instrum ents
Assets:
Manage Net investment
Interest rate sw aps $ 20000 Duration Other assets k] 333 incorme ¥ (2.708)
Generate Net investment
TEBAS 60,750 Income Other assets 63,038 income 10
Liabilties:
Manage Net investment
Interest rate sw aps 1,066,200 Duration Other liabilities (1.788) income TaTa
Generate Net investment
TEAS 54,475 Income Other liabilities (54.782) income g
Tetal open positions $1.201.425 3  6.804 3 4638
Closed:
Manage Net investment
Interest rate sw aps $ 871300 Duration Ni&, income ¥ (27.200)
Generate Net investment
TEBAS 3,108,028 Income NiA income 585
Tctal closed positions 3 (26.805)
Tatal $ (21817
2014
Statem ent of
{in fhousands of doffars) Balance Sheet Com prehensive Income
Notional Am ount
Derivatives designated as: Value Purpose Classification Fair ¥alue Clas sification Realized
Non-hedging instrum ents
Assets:
Manage
interest rate Net investment
Interest rate sw aps $ 130,000 risk Other assets k] 3.041 incorme ¥ (34.479)
Liabilties:
Manage
interest rate Net investment
Interest rate sw aps 1,005,000 risk Other liabilities (18.794) income (17.483)
Total open positions $1.135.000 $  (15.753) $ (51.872)
Closed:
Manage
interest rate Net investment
Interest rate sw aps $ 265000 risk Ni&, income F (4.142)
Total closed positions F (4142
Tatal $ (55.114)
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The following table provides gross and net amounts for the Company’s derivative instruments:

2015

fir thousands of dollars) Amounts Not Offset on
Balance Sheet
Securities
Gash Gollateral GCollateral
Derivatives Counterparty {Received) Het Amount on {Received)
Designated as: Gross Amount Hetting Pledged Balance Sheet Pledged HetAmount
Assets F 70542 F (71713 % - % 83,371 F - % 83,371
Lizbilities (B3, 738) 7171 332 (56.2358) 918 (55.317)
Total il g,804 F - il 332 F 7136 F 918 F 5,084
2014
fir thousands of dollars) Amounts Not Offset on
Balance Sheet
Securities
Gash Gollateral GCollateral
Derivatives Counterparty {Received) Het Amount on {Received)
Designated as: Gross Amount Netting Pledged Balance Sheet Pledged NetAmount
Assets % 4,147 F (1.108) F (2,610} F 431 F - % 431
Lizbilities (19,900 1,108 20,438 1,842 14,291 18,933
Total 3 (18.753) F - F 17,826 F 2,073 F 14,291 F 16,364

Collateral pledged as initial margin to the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME) is not subject
to a master netting agreement and is therefore excluded from collateral {received) pledged in
the previous table.

Counterparty credit risk is evaluated closely to ensure that the party, or collateral, backing the
derivative transaction will meet the financdial obligations of the contract. For bilateral over-the-
counter interest rate swap transactions the amount of counterparty exposure depends on the
creditworthiness of and collateral provided by the counterparty. The Company actively
monitors and evaluates the financial qualifications of counterparties to its swap agreements
and requires these counterparties to provide sufficient collateral security through the execution
of a legally enforceable Credit Support Annex (CSA). The CSA requires collateral to be
exchanged when predetermined exposure limits are exceeded and permits either party to net
collateral transfers due for rransactions covered under the agreements. As of December 31,
2015 and 2014, the Company pledged bonds with a fair value of $918,000 and $14,291,000,
respeciively, as collateral to counterparties. Bonds pledged by the Company as collateral are
included in bonds, available-for-sale, on the consolidated balance sheets. There were no
bonds pledged by counterparties to the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. The
Company pledged cash of $240,000 and $656,000 as collateral to counterparties and
counterparties pledged $0 and $2,610,000 in cash collateral to the Company as of December
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Cash collateral pledged to (by) the Company is netted with
derivative assets (liabilities) on the consolidated balance sheets as previously described.
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Certain OTC swap contracts were transacted and cleared through the central clearinghouse at
the CME, where the CME serves as the counterparty for both parties to the swap contract.
Rather than directly posting collateral to/from a traditional counterparty as in a bilateral
agreement, the Company posts initial and variation margin per the CME's requirements. Initial
margin, which may consist of cash and/or securities, protects against “shock™ events and is
not used to settle market value variation movements. After initial execution of the swap
contract, the CME uses a market-standard model to price {mark to market) accepted trades,
and that price serves as the basis for variation margin requirements. Similar to the movement
of collateral between countemarties in a bilateral agreement, centrally cleared swap contracts
require variation margin to be posted (received) by the Company as the market value of the
swap contract moves further out of (into) the money. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company pledged initial margin of $849,000 and $50,000 in cash and bonds with a fair value
of $5,432,000 and $0, respectively, to the CME. In addition, the Company pledged $93,000
and $19,781,000 in cash as variation margin to the CME as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respeciively. The CME posted no cash or secunties as variation margin to the Company as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014. Cash pledged as variation margin by (io) the Company is
netted with derivative assets (liabilities) on the consolidated balance sheets as previously
described. Bonds pledged by the Company as margin are included in bonds, available-for-
sale, on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company does not exchange collateral with counterparties in relation to TBA dollar roll
securities.

Counterparty credit exposure by counterparty credit rating as it relates to open derivative
positions as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, is as follows:

2015
{in thousands of dollars)
Number of Notional (Par) Credit Exposure, Net
Rating Counterparties Value Exposure of Collateral
Cenfrally Cleared 1 $ 991,200 $ - $ -
AA- 1 500 - -
At 3 67,140 - -
A 6 92 985 40,263 40,263
A- 2 36,080 14,393 14,393
BBB+ 1 13,520 8,715 8,715
Total 14 $ 1,201,425 % 63,371 % 63,371
2014
{in thausands of dollars)
Number of Credit Exposure, Net
Rating Counterparties Notional Value Exposure of Collateral
Cenfrally Cleared 1 $ 670,000 $ - $ -
At 2 330,000 3,041 431
A 1 85,000 - -
A- 1 50,000 - -
Total 5 % 1,135,000 % 3,041 % 431
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f  Netlinvestment Income
Net invesiment income for the years ended December 31 is summarized as follows:
finn thousands of doffars) 2015 2014
Bonds % 397,166 % 426,331
Common stocks 58,459 45287
Real estate 44 378 44,289
Mortgage loans 28,088 24,631
Policyloans 15,521 15,958
Limited parnerships and jointventures 107 247 116,935
Other (79) (13,806)
Total gross investmentincome 650,780 659,625
Change in value of convertible bonds - (14,339
Change in value of denvatives (21.,917) (56,114)
Change in fair value oflong-term debt 24027 (127.845)
Investmentexpenses (90 ,480) (84 ,498)
Netinvestmentincome 5 562 410 5 376,629
g. Mortgage Loans

The minimum and maximum lending rates for commercial mortgage loans issued during 2015
and 2014 ranged from 3.25% to 5.80% and 3.42% to 6.10%, respectively. During 2015 and
2014, the Company did not reduce interest rates on any outstanding mortgage loans.

Mortgage loans of the Company are invested primarily in office, retail and industrial properties
and are reported and measured at their outstanding principal amount. Fire and extended
coverage insurance is required on all properties. The maximum percentage ofany one loan to
the value of security at the time of the loan, exclusive of insured or guaranteed or purchase
money mortgages, did not exceed 72%.

Significant concentrations of mortgage loans amounting to $193,184,000 and $196,470,000
exist for properties located in the Midwest region at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. In addition significant concentrations by state include the following:

fin thousands of doflars) 2015 2014
Texas $ 125485 % 112,336
Ohio 74505 71,328

The Company considers any loan that is one or more days delinquent to be past due. At
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had no past due commercial mortgage loans,
and the average recorded investment in impaired loans was $0 during both 2015 and 2014.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, all loans in the portfolio were in good standing, and no
loans had been modified or restructured.

A loan is considered to be in good standing if all payments are current. When reviewing loans
for impairment and making the determination to increase the valuation allowance or to charge
off a loan, the Company individually monitors and analyzes loans and does not utilize portfolio
segments or classes for monitoring purposes. The Company considers delinquency or default
of payments, the mortgage loan unpaid principal balance as a percent of the fair value of the
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mortgage loan collateral, present value of expected payments compared to the current
carrying value of the mortgage, current rent rolls of the property, financial condition of major
tenants, and local economic conditions that would impact individual loans when reviewing
potential loan impairment.

If analysis of any of these factors suggests the ability of the borrower to make future payments
may be compromised or if the loan is delinquent in its payments by fewer than 90 days, the
loan is added to the Companys watchlist A watchlist loan has developed negative
characteristics or trends in the impairment indicators discussed above, but has not yet met the
critenia of a non-performing loan. Specific examples of such watchlist indicators may include
loss of a major tenant or delinquency of property tax payments. Watchlist loans are monitored
closely by the Company for indications of possible default, and an allowance may be
established if ultimate collectability of the full principal amount becomes uncertain. If a loan is
90 days or more past due or is in the process of foreclosure, the loan is reclassified as non-
performing. Non-performing loans are reserved to an amount equal to the expected potential
principal loss and are reviewed in detail to determine whether an impairment or charge-off is
necessary. Charge-offs are recorded when principal loss is imminent and the amount is
readily determinable.

The Company had $527,179,000 and $483,404 000 of loans outstanding as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively, of which $17,150,000 and $47 905,000 were on the watchlist.
There were no non-performing loans held as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. There were no
charge-offs recorded in the mortgage loan portfolio in 2015 and 2014.

The Company did not carry a valuation allowance for credit losses on mortgage loans as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Commercial mortgage loans are placed on nonaccrual status after a default notice has been
issued and the borrower has failed to cure the defect in a reasonable amount of time. Once a
loan reaches nonaccrual status any accrued interest income is derecognized and future
accrual of interest is suspended until the loan is made current. If the ultimate collectability of
principal, either in whole or in part, is in doubt, any payment received on a nonaccrual loan
shall first be applied to reduce principal to the extent necessary to eliminate such doubt.
There were no loans in nonaccrual status at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and no loans were
restructured during 2015 or 2014

Fair Value Option (FVO) of Long-Term Debt

The following table presents information for certain liabilities which are accounted for under
the FVO at December 31, 2015 and 2014. These liabilities are comprised of the entire balance
of the FHLBC long-term debt which was measured at fair value upon receipt of the advance
(see Note 10).

fin thousands of dollars)

Liabilities: 2015 2014
Confractual principal balance $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Difference between esimated fair value and
confractual principal balance 99,994 124,021
Carnying value atestimated fair value $ 599,994 $ 624,021

33



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Changes in fair value of these liabilities of $24,027 000 and $(127,.845,000) are recognized in
net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Fair value for the FHLBC advance is based upon a discounted cash flow analysis using a
combination of observable and insignificant unobservable market inputs. Electing the fair
value option of long-term debt better reflects the economic position of the liability due to the
prepayment option of the FHLBC advance.

The Company has not elected the FVO for the long-term debt associated with PGC (see Note
10).

3. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

DAC and the related amortization charged to income were as follows:

fin thousands of dollars) 2015 2014
Property and Casualty
Balance, beginning of year $ 358,775 $ 328951
Costs deferred during year 1,080,875 962,822
Amoriization related to operations during year (1,029,669) (932,998)
Balance, end of year $ 409981 $ 358,775
Life
Balance, beginning of year $ 285887 $ 289860
Costs deferred during year 24,406 23,013
Amortization related to operations during year (15,672) (14,696)
Netadjustmentdue o assumption revisions (701) 3,207
Amounts related o change in fair value
adjusiment of available-for-sale bonds 31,435 (15497}
Balance, end of year $ 325355 $ 285887
AFFS
Balance, end of year $ 9 $ 9
Total DAC $ 735345 $ 644671
4, Commitments and Contingencies

The Companies have various leases for property and equipment used in the normal course of
business. These lease commitments are summarized in Note 1{n).

The Companies are contingently liable for cessions to reinsurers to the extent that any reinsurer
might be unable to meetits obligations assumed under the various reinsurance contracts.

AFMIC has purchased annuities for which the daimant is the payee, but for which AFMIC is

contingently liable. The carrying values of all such annuities purchased from nonaffliated life
insurers at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $56,163,000 and $58,723,000, respectively.
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AFMIC enters into contractual agreements that require capital contributions to limited partnerships.
These contributions are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as other invested assets.
Capital is typically contributed to the partnerships over multiple years. At any time, AFMIC will
have commitments to the partnerships that have not yet been funded. As of December 31, 2015
and 2014, AFMIC was obligated to contribute $435 983,000 and $352,947 000, respectively, in
additional capital to various limited parinerships. These confributions are callable under the
commitments to the partnerships over the lives of the partnerships.

The Companies are at times involved In lawsuits which are related to their operations. In most
cases, such lawsuits involve claims under insurance policies and other contracts of the Companies.
Such lawsuits, either individually or in the aggregate, are not expected to have a material effect on
the Companies’ financial statements.

The Companies are liable for mandatory assessments that are levied by the property and casualty
and life and health guaranty fund associations of states in which the Companies are licensed.
These assessments are to cover losses to policyholders of insolvent or rehabilitated insurance
companies. Guaranty fund assessment liabilities, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, were
$25,123,000 and $29,848,000, respectively. Corresponding assets related to future premium tax
credits have also been recorded and were $15,744 000 and $16,093,000 as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. Such estimates are subject to change as the associations determine more
precisely the losses that have occurred and how such losses will be assessed to insurance
companies.

5. Income Taxes

The components of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) at December 31 are as follows:

fin thousands of dolfars) 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets
Life reserves $ 104,768 $ 113,070
Uneamed premium 89,929 82,565
Reserve discounting, net of salvage and subrogation 50,885 57,969
Deferred compensation 333,163 327,958
Pension accrual 66,462 77,613
Policyholder dividends 3,694 4,136
Fair Value Option of Long Term Debt 36,318 45,063
AMT credit carryover - 38,765
Netoperating loss carryforward 4,444 1,920
Other 738 7,532
Total deferred tax assets 690,401 756,591
Deferred tax liabilities
Investments (309,276) (498,359)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (62,965) (62,810)
Depreciation basis differences (125,820) (99,271)
Intangibles (62,153} (74,157)
Total deferred tax liabilities (560,214} (734,597)
Netdeferred tax assets (liabiliies) $ 130,187 % 21,994

35



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

As of December 31, 2015, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards of $8,603,000 which
will expire at various times through 2035.

The effective tax rate used to determine the provision for current and deferred tax expense differs
from the expected statutory rate as the result of permanent and other differences between pre-tax
income and taxable income determined under existing tax regulations. The more significant
differences, their effect on the statutory tax rate, and the resulting effective tax rates are
summarized as follows:

2015 2014

Federal statutory taxrate 35.0 % 350 %
Tax-exemptincome, net of proration (2.3) (4.3)
Dividend received deduction {(1.2) {1.6)
State tax expense (net of federal tax) 0.8 15
Change in prior year's taxes (0.5) -
Other (0.2) 0.2

Effective taxrate 316 % 308 %

Under pre-1984 life insurance company income tax laws, a portion of a company’s “gain from
operations” was not subject to current income taxation but was accumulated for tax purposes in a
memorandum account designated as the “Policyholders’ Surplus Account” A stock life insurance
company is subject to tax on any direct or indirect distributions to shareholders from the existing
Policyholders’ Surplus Account at the corporate rate in the tax year of the distribution.  Any
distributions are deemed to be first made from another tax memorandum account known as the
“Shareholder's Surplus Account.” The Company's undistributed taxable Shareholder's Surplus
Account was $1,371,216,000 and $1,323,885,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The Company's Policyholders’ Sumplus Account was $5,149,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014.
At current corporate income tax rates, the associated tax is $1,802,000. The Company has not
recorded this DTL because it does not expect to make any taxable distributions.

The guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes prescribes a minimum recognition
threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements.
Interest and penalties on tax uncertainties are classified as a separate operating expense. The
total amount of interest accrued was $441,000 and $536,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respeciively. The Company does not expect to have a significant change in unrecognized tax
benefits in the next twelve months.

The examinations of the Company’s consolidated federal income tax returns for the years 2011 and
prior are closed, and the years 2012 through 2014 remain open under the IRS statute of limitations.
The examinations of PGC Holdings Corp. and Subsidiaries’ federal income tax return (filed
separately until 2013) for the years 2011 and prior are dosed, and the year 2012 remains open
under the IRS statute of limitations. The examinations of Homesite Group Inc. and Subsidiaries’
federal income tax return (filed separately until 2014) for the years 2011 and prior are closed, and
the years 2012 through 2013 remain open under the IRS statute of limitations. Homesite and its
subsidianes are currently under federal audit for tax year 2013.
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6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company’s business acquisitions of Homesite, PGC and MIC resulted in the identification of
certain intangible assets and goodwill. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their
estimated useful lives of one to twelve years. Finite-lived intangible assets have a weighted
average remaining useful life of approximately eight years at both December 31, 2015 and 2014.
Intangible assets with indefinite lives will not be amortized but are evaluated at least annually for
impairment. The Company completes an annual test for goodwill impairment during the fourth
quarter based on the results of operations through October 31 and there were no indications of
goodwill or intangible asset impairment. The following presents a summary of the Company's
goodwill and intangible assets at December 31:

2015 2014

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

{in thousands of doffars) Balance Amortization Balance Amortization
Total goodwill $ 221,627 3 - $ 221,627 3 -
Trade name and frademarks 25,900 7,770 25,900 5,180
Partner relationships 97,100 5,354 97,100 1,634
Referral relationships 11,100 8,972 11,100 5,842
Software 23,000 19,744 23,000 12,388
Renewal rights 58,500 23,994 58,500 7,532
Value ofbusiness acquired 52,350 52,350 52,350 52,350
Total finite life intangible assets 265,950 118,184 265,950 84,926
State insurance licenses 28,310 - 28,310 -
Total indefinite life intangible assets 28310 - 28310 -
Total goodwill and intangible assets $ 515887 $ 118,184 $ 515887 $ 849026

The Company recorded $33,258,000 and $69 355000 of amortization expense related to
intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets with a finite life for each of the
next five years is as follows:

{in thousands of dollars}

2016 $ 24,418
2017 22,761
2018 19,594
2019 18,800
2020 14,252
Total $ 99,825
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7. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has non-contributory pension plans (herein referred to as the “Plans™ covering
substantially all employees except for those employees of PGC or Homesite. For AFMIC
employees hired before January 1, 2009, and Agency Sales Managers hired before January 1,
2010, benefits are based on years of credited service and highest average compensation (as
defined in the Plans). For employees hired on or after January 1, 2009, and Agency Sales
Managers hired on or after January 1, 2010, benefits are determined under a cash balance formula
(as defined in the Plans). The asset valuation method used in 2015 for the funding calculation was
the Two-Year Smoothed Value method. The new benefit restricions, required under the Pension
Protection Act of 2006, do not apply in 2015 given the funded status of the Plans.

The Company's two qualified pension plans merged as of December 31, 2015, This merger does
not impact the valuation of the qualified plan’s net assets or benefit obligation.

The Company provides certain health care benefits to substantially all employees and contributes
toward eligible employees’ postretirement health care using a fixed amount for each year of eligible
service. Certain employees may also receive health care benefits upon retirement via conversion
ofunused sick days earned prior to 2008. In addition, the Company provides most employees with
a life insurance benefit, for which the Company absorbs substantially all of the cost The
Company's portion of the costs of these programs is unfunded. The Company sponsors no other
significant postretirement benefit plans and uses a measurement date of December 31 for valuing
pension and other postretirement benefit plans.
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The following table reflects the Plans’ funded status, the Company's accrued postretirement
benefits liability, and amounts recognized in the Company's consolidated balance sheets at
December 31:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

{inn thousands of dofars} 2015 2014 2015 2014
Change in benefits obligation
Projected benefit obligation,
beginning of year $1,070535 & 869609 $ 55707 % 50,061
Senvice cost 48,956 40,043 3,336 3,059
Interestcost 40,242 38,653 2,097 2,248
Plan participant contributions - - - -
Amendments - - - -
Actuarial (gain¥loss (13,401) 176,920 (2,864) 1,675
Benefits paid (60,184) (54,690) (2,184) (1,336)
Liability {gain)loss due to
curtailmentsetiement - - - -
Projected benefit obligation,
end of year $ 1,086,148 $ 1,070,535 $ 56,092 $ 55,707
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets,
beginning of year $ 749341 § 731927 § - 8 -
Actual return on plan assets (3,225) 68,205 - -
Employer confribution 82,637 3,899 2,184 1,336
Plan participant contributions - - - -
Benefits paid (60,184) (54,690) (2,184) (1,336)
Fair value of plan assets,
end of year $ 768569 $ 7492341 $ - % -
Net amount recognized $ (317579 % (321,194 $ (56,092) $ (55,707)
Net periodic cost
Senvice cost $ 48955 % 40,043 % 3,336 % 3,059
Interestcost 40,242 38,653 2,097 2,248
Expected return on plan assets (48,636) {51,854) - -
Amortization of

Prior sendce cost (6,789) (6,787) (1,331) (1,331)

Actuarial {(gain)loss 22,762 8,263 111 105
Curtailment/setiement
expenselincome) 837 1,376 - -
Net periodic cost $ 57,371 $ 29694 % 4213 % 4,081
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) $ (281,409) $ (259,760) § 14,464  $ 12,620

The Company recognized additional pension expenses in connection with settlement accounting,
which resulted from lump sum distributions exceeding service and interest cost during the year, of
$837,000 and $1,376,000 for 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Incremental Effect of Applying Pension and Other Postretirement Guidance
On Individual Line Items in the Balance Sheets

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
(in thousands of dollars) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Liability for benefits $ 317,579 $ 321,194 $ 56,092 $ 55,707
Deferred income taxes 115,345 116,706 20,373 20,241
Liabilities (net of tax) $ 202,234 $ 204488 $ 35,719 $ 35,466
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss ) (net of tax) $ (13,786) $(100410) $ 1,047 $  (1,847)
Components of Periodic Benefit Cost
ThatMake up Other Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2015
Pension Benefits Postretirement Be nefits
Before Tax Tax (Expense) HNet-of-tax Before Tax Tax (Expense) HNet-of-tax
(i thowsarnds of doMars) Amount or Benefit Amount Amount or Benefit Amount
Actuarial gain (loss) % (38480 B 13,869 §  (24.491) 3 2,884 § (1.040) 1,824
Less: Amorization of actuarial gain (loss) 23782 (8,267 14,455 111 40y 71
Frior service cost - - - - - -
Less: Amorization of prier sendce cost [6,789) 2,488 (4,323 01,331 483 (848}
Actuarial gain (loss)recogniz=ed due to setflerment - - - - - -
Less: Amorization of actuarial gain (loss) due to settlement 837 (304} 533 - - -
Prior service cost recognized due to settlement - - - - - -
Less: Amorization of prior service cost due to setflerment - - - - - -
Metrecognizedin other comprehensive income F (21.6580) § T.BE4 F (13,786} F 1,644 § B9 § 1,047
Estimateditems tobe amortized in next year's
periodic pension cost from accumulated other
comprehensive income
Amortiztion of net actuarial loss (gain) F 20,074 F 50
Arnoriztion of prier s envice cost (credit) (5,800} 01,331
Arnoriztion of transition obligation (asset) - -
Total bl 13274 bl (1,271}

The pension accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $922 003,000
and $927 580,000, respectively.
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Pension Benefits Postrefirement Benefits
2015 2014 2015 2014
Assumpfions used to determine
projected benefit obligations as
of Decem ber 31:
Discount rate
Qualified plans
Em ployee Plan 420 % 385 % [REr Mid
District Manager Plan i A58 [REr Mid
Mongualified plans
District Manager SupplementaryPlan 330 RN [REr Mid
District Manager Expense
Reim bursementPlan 3.95 3.60 IN/A, INFA
Em ployee Excess Plan 380 330 [REr Mid
District Manager Excess Plan 410 380 [REr Mid
Combined Benefit Senvice Plan 410 375 IN/A, INFA
Prior Service Plan 3.40 3.20 IN/A, INFA
Other benefit plans Mid iA 421 % 410 %
Expected return on plan assets
Qualified plans (all plans) 575 % 575 % [REr [REr
Rate of com pensation increase
Qualified plans
Em ployee Plan 350 % 325 % [REr [REr
District Manager Plan i iA [REr [REr
Mongualified plans
District Manager SupplementaryPlan Mid iA [REr [REr
District Manager Expense
Reim bursementPlan INFA INA IN/A, IN/A,
Em ployee Excess Plan A60 A25 [REr [REr
District Manager Excess Plan Mid iA [REr [REr
Combined Benefit Senvice Plan 350 3.25 IN/A, IN/A,
Prior Service Plan INFA INA IN/A, IN/A,
Other benefit plans Mid iA [REr [REr
Assumpfions used fo determine net
periodic benefit costas of December 31:
Discount rate:
Qualified plans
Em ployee Plan 385 % 485 % [REr [REr
District Manager Plan i 415 [REr [REr
Mongualified plans
District Manager SupplementaryPlan RN A60 [REr [REr
District Manager Expense
Reimbursem entPlan 3.60 4.20 IN/A, IN/A,
Em ployee Excess Plan 330 4.00 [REr [REr
District Manager Excess Plan 380 4.40 [REr [REr
Combined Benefit Senvice Plan 375 460 IN/A, IN/A,
Prior Service Plan 3.20 3.65 IN/A, IN/A,
Other benefit plans Mid Mid 410 % 480 %

Expected return on plan assets:
Qualified plans (all plans): 575 % 780 % [REr [REr

Rate of com pensation increase:
CQualified plans

Employee Plan 325 % A7 %W [REr [REr
Distict Managar Plan i iA [REr [REr
Mongualifed plans

DistictManagaer Supplem entary Plan Mid iA [REr [REr
DistictManager Expense

Reim bursementPlan INFA INA IN/A, IN/A,
Employee Excess Plan A25 A7s [REr [REr
Distict Manager Excess Plan Mid iA [REr [REr
Combined BenefitSenvice Plan 3.25 375 IN/A, IN/A,
Prior Service Plan INFA INA IN/A, IN/A,
Other benefitplans Mid iA [REr [REr

¥ The Distict Manager Plan merged into the Employee Plan effective December 3, 2015,
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Assumed health care cost trend rates do not have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
the health care plans.

Annual rates of increase in the per capita costs of 7.25% and 7.50% (Pre-G5) and 6.75% and
7.00% (Post-65) of covered health care benefits were assumed for 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Rates will gradually decrease to 5.00% by 2022

The expected long-term rate of return on the funded plan assets was 6.75% and 7.50% in 2015
and 2014, respectively. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based upon an analysis of
historical returns and long-term capital market assumptions for each asset class. The expected
returns by asset class contemplate a risk free interest rate environment as of the measurement
date and then add a risk premium. The risk premium is a range of percentages and is based upon
information and other factors such as expected reinvestment returns and asset manager
performance. Finally, an underlying inflation assumption is incorporated to determine the overall
expected long-term rate ofreturn assumption. The target allocation, asset allocation, and fair value
of plan assets for the Company’'s pension plans at the end of 2015 and 2014, by asset category,

follow.
{in thousands ofdollars) Percentage of Plan Fair Value of Plan
Target Allocation Assets, Year End Assets, Year End
Asset Category 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Equity 55 % 54 % 56 % 55 % $423.811 $ 401,467
Debt 40 40 38 37 292 819 276,147
Private equity 5 5 5 7 37,303 49,090
Com modities - 1 - - - -
Other {cash and cash equivalents) - - 1 1 7,963 9,686
Total 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % $ 761,806 $ 736,300

The overall investment objective of the Plans is to maximize the risk adjusted return on assets over
a long-term period, while ensuring the Plans are able to meet current and future obligations to plan
participants. The primary considerations in developing target asset allocations are the Plans’
overall investment objective, the investment objectives for the various assets, the necessary level
of diversification, and maintaining an acceptable level of risk. The existing allocations are within
the Company’s tolerance for variation from target allocation.

The Plans’ equity allocation seeks to provide long-term returns with a diversified basket of domestic
and international equity securiies and mutual funds. The Plans invest in actively managed
domestic and international mutual funds and equity portfolios that seek to diversify equity risk,
generate long-term growth of capital, and outperform benchmark indices. Actively managed equity
allocations represent 36% and 35% of Plan assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The Plans also invest in a passively managed domestic large cap equity index portfolio that seeks
to mirror the risk characteristics and return performance of the Russell 200 Index. This portfolio
comprised approximately 20% of Plan assets at both December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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The pension bond fund seeks to maximize total return by investing in fixed income securities. The
fund offers diverse exposure to the fixed income market by investing in a combination of
investment grade bonds including corporate debt securities, U.S. Treasury and agency securities,
mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities, and cash equivalents. The objective is to
outperform Barclays’ U.S. Aggregate Index. This fund comprised 34% and 37% of Plan assets at
year end 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Plans’ bond allocation also includes an invesiment in a
multi-sector fixed income value fund, representing 4% and 0% of Plan assets at year end 2015 and
2014, respectively.

The altemative invesiments objective is to add diversification and produce superior long-term
returns when compared to more tradiional investment opportunities. These assets comprised 5%
and 7% of Plan assets at year end 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company has no significant concentrations of risk within Plan assets.

Plan assets at fair value are categorized in the same manner as Company assets, based on the
reliability of inputs to the valuation techniques as described in Note 1(c).

Below is a summary of significant valuation techniques specific to Plan assets:

Level 1 Measurements

Bonds: U.S. Govemment Securities: Comprised of U.S. Treasuries valued based on unadjusted
quoted prices for identical assets in aclive markets.

Equity Securities: Common Stocks. Comprised of actively traded, exchange listed US. and
international equity securities. Valuation is based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
in active markets that the Plan can access.

Shori-term_Investiments: Comprised of actively traded money market funds that have daily quoted
net asset values for identical assets that the Plan can access.

Level 2 Measurements

Equity Securities: Mutual Funds: Comprised of non-actively traded U.S. and international funds,
including the multi-sector fixed income value fund, priced by the fund manager using observable
inputs primarnly consisting of quoted prices of the underlying investments.

Bonds: Corporate Bonds and Notes, Foreign Bonds, and Municipal Bonds: Valued using the
market and income approaches based on inputs including quoted prices for identical or similar
assets in markets that are not active, benchmark yield curves, bid/ask spreads, credit quality, and
projected cash flows.

Level 3 Measurements

Limited Partnerships. Valued using capital account valuations as reported by the various limited
partnerships, which approximates fair value.
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The following table summarizes the Plan's financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets at fair value as of December 31, 2015

{in thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Bonds
U S Government s ecurities $ 58,455 $ - $ - % 58,455
Corporate bonds and notes - 173,103 - 173,103
Municipal bonds - 799 - 799
Foreign bonds - 24278 - 24278
Equity securifies
Common stocks 188,330 - - 188,330
Mutual funds - 271,665 - 271,665
Shortterm investments 7,963 - - 7,963
Limited partnerships® - - 37,303 37,303
Total financial assets at fair value $ 254,748 $ 469,845 $ 37,303 $ 761,896

Assets at fair value as of December 31,2014

{in thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Bonds
U S Government s ecurities $ 14,588 $ - $ - % 14,588
Corporate bonds and notes - 217,200 - 217,200
Municipal bonds - 1,312 - 1,312
Foreign bonds - 43,047 - 43,047
Equity securifies
Common stocks 181,752 - - 181,752
Mutual funds - 219,715 - 219,715
Shortterm investments 9,686 - - 9,686
Limited partnerships® - - 49,090 49,090
Total financial assets at fair value $ 206,026 $ 481,274 $ 49,090 $ 736,390

* Limited partnerships were valued using 9/30 capital accountvaluations provided by the various limited partnerships,
adjusted for any capital calls made and disfribufions received between 9/30 and 12/31.

All transfers into or out of a particular level are recognized as of the beginning of the reporting
period. The Plan transferred $9,686,000 of short-term investments from Level 2 to Level 1in 2014
as a result of a review of current pricing methodologies. The transferred money market funds are
valued based on unadjusted quoted prices in markets that are considered to be generally active
and therefore meet the characteristics of Level 1 financial asset

There were no other transfers into or out of Level 1, 2, or 3 duning 2015 or 2014.
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The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Plan’s Level 3 assets for
the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Limited Partnerships

{in thousands ofdollars) 2015 2014

Balance, beginning of year* $ 49,090 $ 71,554
Purchases, sales,issuance and setlements, net {11,787) (22,464)
Balance, end of year* $ 37,303 $ 49,090

* Limited partnerships were valued using 9/30 capital accountvaluations provided by the various limited
partmerships, adjusted for any capital calls made and dis fributions received between 9/30 and 12/31.

Expected Cash Flows
Information about the expected cash flows for the pension and other postretirement benefits plans

follows:

Pension Postretirement
fin thousands of dolfars) Benefits Benefits
Employer contributions
2016 (expected) $3,821 -$588,718 % 3,354
Expected benefit payments
2016 75,366 3,354
2017 80,384 3,513
2018 83,284 3,673
2019 86,479 3,971
2020 89,313 4,162
2021 - 2025 472 580 23,985

The above table reflects vested benefits expected to be paid from the Plans.

Expected confributions include qualified pension benefits contributions within the range of $0
(minimum contribution) and $584,897 000 (maximum contribution) and postretirement contribution
of $3,354,000 expected to be paid from the Companies’ assets in 2016.

Other Plans

AFMIC also participates in a qualified contributory 401(k) plan (herein referred to as the “Plan”).
Substantially all employees of AFMIC are eligible to enter into the Plan. Employee participation in
the Plan is optional; participants contribute at least 1%, but no more than 30% of base
compensation, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. AFMIC is required to make
contributions each payroll period, as defined, to a trust fund. These contributions are based on a
formula with a 100% match on the first 3% of eligible contributions plus 50% on the next 2% of
eligible confributions. The maximum annual contribution of AFMIC is 4% of eligible contributions.
AFMIC recognized expense of $18,514,000 and $18,427 000 related to the Plan in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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PGC sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan for which substantially all employees of PGC are
eligible to participate. Under the PGC plan, PGC’s matching contribution is equal to 50% to 100%
of each participant's conftribution {depending upon years of service) to a maximum of 5% of the
participant’s eligible compensation. Plan expenses for PGC during 2015 and 2014 amounted to
$948,000 and $1,256,000, respectively.

Homesite sponsors a defined contribution 401{(k) plan for which substantially all Homesite
employees are eligible to participate. Under the Homesite plan, Homesite's matching contribution
is equal to 50% of each participant's contribution, subject to a maximum of 5% of the participant's
eligible compensation. Expenses related to the Homesite plan of $4,271,000 and $3,620,000 were
incurred during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

A liability of $51,397 000 and $48,976,000 was accrued for earned but unused vacation as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. A liability of $18,715000 and $17,458,000 was
accrued for unused sick leave as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

8. Agent Contract Termination Payments

Exclusive agents of American Family are eligible to receive payments upon termination after a
period of covered service. Years of service exclude time under an advance compensation plan,
not to exceed two years. For agents appointed prior to January 1, 2009 that have more than 10
years of covered service, payments are based on a percentage of service fees during the period of
up to 12 months prior to termination {as defined in the agreement). For agents appointed on or
after January 1, 2009 that have eight or more years of covered service, payments are based on a
cash balance formula that utilizes sales and service fees (as defined in the agreement).

The Company uses a measurement date of December 31 for its contract termination payments
plan.
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The following sets forth the status of the agent contract termination payments plan’'s obligation
reconciled with amounts reported in the Companies’ consolidated balance sheets at December 31:

fin thousands of doflars) 2015 2014
Change in benefits obligation

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 675,164  § 575,156
Semnice cost 28,396 24,501
Interestcost 26,034 26,526
Plan paricipant confributions - -
Amendments - -
Actuarial (gain) loss (35,406) 82,588
Benefits paid (34,18 1) (33,607)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 660,007 & 675,164
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ - 8 -
Actual return on plan assets - -
Employer confribution 34,181 33,607
Plan paricipant confributions - -
Benefits paid (34,18 1) (33,607)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ - § -
Net AmountRecognized $ (660,007) $ (675,164)
Net periodic cost

Senice cost $ 28396 % 24,501
Interestcost 26,034 26,525

Expected return on plan assets - -
Amorlization of
Transition {(asset) obligation - -
Prior service cost - -

Actuarial (gain) loss {(170) (3,990)
Net periodic cost $ 54260 % 47,036
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 52,018 $ 16,783

47



American Family Mutual Insurance Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Incremental Effect of Applying Pension and Other Postretirement Guidance
On Agent Contract Termination Payment Program Individual Line Items
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands of dollars) 2015 2014
Liability for benefits $ 660,007 § 675,164
Deferred income taxes 239,715 246 132
Liabilities (netoftax) $ 420292 $ 429032
Other comprehensive

incomef(loss ) net of tax $ 22437 § (65,016)

Com ponents of Periodic Benefit Cost
That Make up Other Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2015
Agent Conftract
Termination Payment Program

Before Tax Tax (Expense) Net-of-tax

(in thousands of dolfars) Amount or Benefit Am ount
Actuarial gain (loss) 3 35406 $§ (12,859) $ 22,547

Less: Amoriization ofactuarial gain (loss) (171) 61 (110)

Prior senvice cost - - -
Less: Am ortization of prior service cost - - -

Net fransition obligaiion - - -
Less: Amoriization ofnet ransition obligation - - -

Netrecognized in other comprehensive income 3 35235 §  (12,798) $ 22,437

Estimated items to be amortized in next year's

periodic pension cost from accumulated other

com prehensive income

Amoriization of net actuarial loss (gain) 3 (183)

Amoriization of prior senice cost {credit) -

Amortization of transition obligation (asset) -
Total 3 183

The accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $570,739,000 and
$579,689,000, respectively.
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2015 2014
Assumptions used to determine projected benefit obligation
as of December 31:
Discount rate 4.30 % 3.95 %
Service fees increase
AFMIC
First8 years after appointment 21.00 21.00
After first 8 years of appointment 3.25 3.25
ASIC
First6 years after appointment 8.00 8.00
After first6 years of appointment (4.00) (4.00)
Expected return on plan assets N/A N/A
Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
as of December 31:
Discount rate 3.95 % 475 %
Service fees increase
AFMIC
First8 years after appointment 21.00 21.00
After first 8 years of appointment 3.25 3.25
ASIC
First6 years after appointment 8.00 8.00
After first6 years of appointment (4.00) (4.00)
Expected return on plan assets N/A N/A

Expected Cash Flows
Information about the expected cash flows for the contract termination payments plan follows:

{inn thousands of dolfars}

Expected contract termination payments

2016 $ 33,085
2017 35,919
2018 38,350
2019 41,489
2020 43,648
2021-2025 245415

The above table reflects vested balances expected to be paid from the Company’'s assets.
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9.

Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve

Activity in the loss and loss adjusiment expense reserve for property and casualty insurance,
including health insurance, is summarized as follows:

fin thousands of doflars) 2015 2014
Direct and assumed balances as of January 1 $ 3725441 % 3,692,509
Less reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses and
loss adjustment expenses 99,938 53,621

Netbalance as of January 1 3,625,503 3,638,888

Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses

related to

Curmrentyear 4,756,738 4,761,926

Prior years (303,031) (150,961)
Total incurred 4,453,707 4610,965

Paidlosses and loss adjustment expenses

related to

Curmrentyear 2,980,970 3,087,377

Prior year 1,372,951 1,536,973
Total paid 4,353,921 4,624,350

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses acquired - -

Netbalance as of December 31 3,725,289 3,625,503
Plus reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses and

loss adjustment expenses 47,584 99,938
Directand assumed balance as of December 31 $ 3772873 $ 372544

The estimated cost of loss and loss adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior
yvears decreased by $303,031,000 and $150,961,000 during 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
decreases in 2015 and 2014 are the result of re-estimation of unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses. The lines of business primarly affected in the current year were Private Passenger
Auto Liability and Homeowners/Farmowners. The lines of business primarily affected in the prior
year were Private Passenger Auto Liability, Auto Physical Damage and Other Liability.

Increases or decreases of this nature occur as the result of cdaim setiements during the current
year, and as additional information is received regarding individual claims, causing changes from
the orginal estimates of individual claims. Recent loss development trends are also taken into
account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses.

Management has reviewed the Companies exposure to toxic tort and environmental pollution
claims. Reported claim activity levels to date have not been material. The Companies are
predominantly a personal lines writer and are not subject to significant exposure from toxic tort and
environmental pollution claims.
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10.

Long-Term Debt

In December 2004, PGC invested in two separate trust subsidiaries by purchasing common stock
totaling $1,083,000 from the trusts and then completed two private placements of trust-preferred
securiies through its newly formed trust subsidiaries. Both placements have a stated term of 30
years redeemable after five years and have a floating interest rate adjusted quarterly based on the
90-day London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), which was 0.613% at December 31, 2015. The
trust subsidiaries used the proceeds to acquire $36,083,000 of long-term subordinated debentures
from PGC. The terms of the debentures issued by PGC are identical to the terms of the trust
preferred securities issued by the trust subsidiaries. Two supplemental indentures were executed
in connection with the acquisition of PGC that resulted in the assumption of the debenture
obligations by AmFam, Inc.

The Company's debentures are reported at the carrying value of $36,083,000, which approximates
fair value, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. The Company paid $1,347,000 and $1,325,000 in
interest on the debentures during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company is a member of the FHLBC. The general nature of the FHLBC agreement is to
provide a platform which provides the Company with the ability to receive advances from the
FHLBC as a member of the bank. Through its membership, the Company has outstanding a 30-
vear fixed rate advance of $500,000,000. The Company pays monthly interest to FHLBC at a fixed
annual interest rate of 5.12%, and principal is due in a balloon payment at the end of the advance’s
30-year term. The Company paid $25,956,000 in interest on the advance during both 2015 and
2014 and recorded accrued interest of $2,204,000 at both December 31, 2015 and 2014. Interest
paid was equal to the amount of interest recorded to other expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The following summarizes general account FHLBC capital stock balances as of December 31:

2015 2014

Shares outstanding (50-1 stock) 100,000 100,000
Shares outstanding (20-1 stock) 20,251 33,261
Total shares outstanding 120,251 133,261
fin thousands of dollars)

Membership stock - Class B $ 6874 $ 8529
Activity stock 5,151 4,797
Aggregate tofal - camying value 12,025 13,326
Actual or estimated bormowing capacity 540,502 566,522
Total borrowing 500,000 500,000
Remaining borrowing capacity 40,502 66,522
Collateral pledged - fair value 703,413 693,721
Collateral pledged - camying value 686,183 668,437

Borrowing capacity is calculated as the book value of FHLBC stock multiplied by the borrowing
capacity of the stock held (e.g. 50-1 or 20-1), less any outstanding advances. The shares in
FHLBC stock are considered Class B shares and are recorded in common stocks, available-for-
sale in the consolidated balance sheets. Fair value for the Company's FHLBC advance is disclosed
in Note 2h.
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11.

12,

The following presents a summary of the Company’s outstanding long-term debt at December 31,

fin thousands of dollars) 2015 2014

Subordinated debentures (PGC), atbook value $ 36,083 % 36,083
30-year fixed rate advance (FHLBC), at fair value - see Note 2h 599,994 624,021
Long-term debt $ 636077 $ 660,104

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {(Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31 was compnsed of the following
components:

{in thousands of dofars} 2015 2014

Unrealized gains {losses) on common stocks $ 679931 $ 881,443
Unrealized gains {losses) on bonds 133,811 444,408
Unrealized gains {(losses) on other assets 1,008 1,007
Adjustment of DAC relating to fair value adjustment {(12,419) (43,854)
Employee/agent deferred compensation plan adjusiment (214,927} (230,157)
Deferred income taxes (212,870} (381,782)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) $ 374534 $ 671,065

Separate Accounts

Separate account assets include segregated funds invested by the Company for the benefit of VUL
and VA policy owners. Policy owners’ premium payments, net of applicable loads, are invested by
the Company in accordance with selections made by the policy owner into the Vanable Accounts.
The Company records these paymenis as assets in the separate accounts. Separate account
liahilities represent reserves held related to the separate account business.

The Variable Accounts are unit investment frusts registered under the Investment Company Act of
1940. Each Variable Account has nine subaccounts, each of which invests in a non-proprietary
mutual fund ({the “Fund”). The shares of the Funds are carried at the net asset value of the Funds,
which approximates fair value.

A fixed account is also included as an investment option for variable policy owners. Premiums, net
of applicable loads, allocated to the fixed account are invested in the general assets of the
Company.

The assets and liabilities of the Variable Accounts are clearly identified and distinguished from the
other assets and liabilities of the Company. The assets of the Variable Accounts will not be applied
to the liahilities arising out of any other business conducted by the Company.

The Company assumes the mortality and expense risk associated with these contracts and
therefore deducts a daily mortality and expense charge from the assets of the separate accounts.
Income from these charges is included in premium revenues in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, and is 100% ceded to KCL. The charges to the separate accounts, shown
as follows for the years ended December 31, are based on the average daily net assets at
specified annual rates:
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(in thousands of dollars) 2015 2014
American Family Variable Account | $ 1,015 § 1,129
Amerncan Family Variable Account || 1,931 2,016

& 2,946 § 3,145

In addition, the Company deducts certain amounts from the cash value of the accounts invested in
the separate accounts for surrender charges, annual administrative charges and cost of insurance
charges. Income from these charges is included in premium revenues in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, and is 100% ceded to KCL. For the years ended December

31 amounts are as follows:

(i thousands of dollars) 2015 2014
American Family Variable Account | % 11,295 % 12,180
American Family Variable Account Il 300 488

5 11,695 & 12,668

13.  Statutory Financial Data

The Company's insurance subsidiaries also prepare financial statements in accordance with
statutory accounting (STAT) praclices prescribed or permitted by the Office of the Commissioner of
Insurance of the State of Wisconsin, the Ohio Department of Insurance, the lllinois Department of
Insurance, the Kansas Insurance Department, the Connecticut Insurance Department, the
California Department of Insurance, the Office of Insurance and Safety Fire Commissioner of the
State of Georgia, the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York, the North Dakota
Insurance Department, and the Texas Department of Insurance (collectively the Companies’
operating NAIC states). Prescribed STAT practices include the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners’ {(NAIC) “Accounting Fractices and Procedures Manual” state laws, regulations,
and general administrative rules applicable to all insurance enterprises domiciled in a particular
state. In addition, the Companies’ operating NAIC states have a right to permit other specific
practices that may deviate from prescribed practices. No permitted differences in STAT practices
between the Companies’ operating NAIC states and the NAIC are used in the preparation of the
statutory financial statements. The principal differences between financial statements prepared in
accordance with STAT and financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP are disclosed

in the reconciliation that follows.

The Company's insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulation and supervision by the various
state insurance regulatory authorities in the states in which they conduct business. Such regulation
is generally designed to protect policyholders and includes such matters as maintenance of
minimum statutory capital and surplus, risk-based capital ratios, and restrictions on the payment of
policyholder dividends. Generally, a portion of the Company's insurance subsidiaries’ statutory
surplus may be available for distribution to their policyholders. However, such distributions as
dividends may be subject to prior regulatory approval. The Company accrued $521,000 and

$434,000 in dividends related to workers’ compensation in 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Consolidated statutory capital and surplus and consolidated net income for AFMIC and its
subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Surplus/Equity NetIncome
fin thousands of dollars) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Per statutory annual statements $6,503,090 $6,030,083 $ 594,461 $ 741369
GAAP adjustments
Unrealized gains (losses )on bonds 157,493 460,379 (4,602) (16,122)
P&C deferred policy acquisifion costs 409,981 358,775 37,693 7,848
Life deferred policy acquisition costs 325,355 285,887 8,033 11,524
Life and deposit contract liabilities (45,646) (99,576) 13,930 15,202
Partnership accounting (80,755) (73,963) 19,495 10,453
Confract termination payments - - 12,165 10,782
Pension/postretirement benefits - - (1,050) (2,960)
Deferred taxes (400,155) (415,912) (60,721) (23,233)
Nonadmitted assels 463,299 445,040 - -
Unrealized gains (losses ) on derivatives - - (4,670) (51,972)
Long-term debtfair value adjustment (99,994) (124,021) 24,027 (127,845)
Amortization ofintangible assets 92,413 49,185 43,227 43,371
Other 37,416 9,231 11,932 (103,223)
Per GAAP financial statements $7,362497 $6,965108 $ 693920 $ 515,194
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